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In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”
“Group”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC”

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”

“HKS"

“RMB”

“Usp”

u% ”
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the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

United States dollars

per cent.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 25 4 2

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—BHLEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-hE ZZEZ-N\F b))
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operational Results BT
Revenue W 1,296,035 2,392,876 (45.8%)
Gross profit E A 99,300 303,177 (67.2%)
(Loss)/profit from operations i (B1R),E A (16,290) 309,586 (105.3%)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EB)aF (70,672) 233,976 (130.2%)
(Loss)/profit attributable to NAEER AEMN
owners of the Company (F518) & F (70,350) 233,638 (130.1%)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2019 2018 Change
—E-hE —Z=-N\F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Financial Position BRSO
Non-current assets FRBEE 218,026 264,157 (17.5%)
Current assets mENEE 820,738 3,185,406 (74.2%)
Current liabilities e B & (487,589) (2,775,318) (82.4%)
Net current assets MBEEFE 333,149 410,088 (18.8%)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (66) (66) =
Total equity B 551,109 674,179 (18.3%)
Non-controlling interests IR = 8,227 8,264 (0.4%)
Total equity attributable to RATEE ANEIE BT
owners of the Company 559,336 682,443 (18.0%)
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK cent) Z & (E18) BF (1) (0.334) 1.108 (130.1%)
Key Ratio Analysis FELRFIN
Gross profit margin EXiES 7.7% 12.7% (39.4%)
Operating (loss)/profit margin e (E18) s FE (1.3%) 12.9% (110.1%)
Net (loss)/profit margin 4 (F518) mF = (5.5%) 9.8% (156.1%)
Returns on equity (Note 7) EOERE (HT1) (12.6%) 34.2% (136.8%)
Current ratio (Note 2) mENE R (M iE2) 1.68 1.15 46.1%
Gearing ratio (Note 3) BEEBBELE (Hi#3) 42.4% 55.5% (23.6%)

Notes:

1: Returns on equity: (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

2: Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities.

3: Gearing ratio: Total borrowings divided by total equity

attributable to owners of the Company plus total borrowings.
Total borrowings as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are HK$

412,557,000 and HK$851,210,000 respectively.

iEE

1: BmERE : RAREE ARG (B1R) SEMBR

AR RBHA AEIERDEER-

2: MBLE: RPEERURBEE-

3: BEABHLR BEERUARRES ARBEE
EEN FEEE R E-AFERZE—\F
ZA=+—RAZ#BEED R A412,557,000% T &
851,210,000/ T °
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(re-designated as Acting Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 31 July 2018,

appointed as Chairman on 14 September 2018)

Mr. Li Zhendong
(appointed on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Hu Haifeng

(resigned as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,

Executive Director on 31 July 2018)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zheng Gang
(appointed on 28 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Dr. Liu Yongping
(appointed on 5 June 2018)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Dr. Liu Yongping

(appointed on 5 June 2018)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Mr. Sin Lik Man

(appointed on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Hu Haifeng

(resigned on 31 July 2018)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Mr. Sin Lik Man
(appointed on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Hu Haifeng
(resigned on 31 July 2018)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Dr. Liu Yongping

(appointed on 5 June 2018)
Mr. Li Zhendong

(appointed on 14 September 2018)
Mr. Sin Lik Man

(appointed on 31 July 2018,

ceased on 14 September 2018)
Mr. Hu Haifeng

(resigned on 31 July 2018)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Sin Lik Man
Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Li Zhendong

(appointed on 14 September 2018)
Mr. Sin Lik Man

(ceased on 14 September 2018)
COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian
AUDITOR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

STOCK CODE

2326
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 3201-09, 32/F
Shui On Centre

No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications, Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank Corporation

CMB Wing Lung Bank

DBS Bank (Hong Kong)

Hang Seng Bank

Nanyang Commercial Bank

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(with effect from 11 July 2019)

COMPANY HOMEPAGE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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2 Church Street
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ViR 80

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019
(the “Year”).

The Group has been principally engaged in the sourcing
and sale of metal minerals and related industrial materials,
production and sale of industrial products and production and
sale of utilities during the Year.

The Group has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for years and has managed
to comply with the strict requirements for credit worthiness
and compliance. Based on our professional knowledge in the
sourcing of metal minerals and related industrial materials
industry as well as the co-operation with our business
partners through the years, the sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business has been
able to generate stable revenue and cash flows for the Group,
allowing the Group to be continually being recognised by our
business partners, and has paved the way to establish a sound
foundation for our future development.

The sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business was affected by the exchange
rate fluctuation during the Year and the unfavorable global
economic outlook, thus the Group’s revenue and gross profit
deteriorated to a certain extent. The Group will enhance its
control over the operating risk and the liquidity risk, and
strive to explore opportunities with development potential
and sustainability to create diversified revenues for the
shareholders and mitigate the Company’s business risks as a
whole.

During the Year, 2 8 2 E IR {R & JR4R & FI A B R 2 7 (literally
translated as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling
Company Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”) and 2
ERTTBEE AR QA (lterally translated as Ningxia Tianyuan
Power Generation Company Limited) (the “Power Company”) in
Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region of the PRC generated stable
contributions to the Group’s revenue and profit for the Year.

EBRE

RARBUBRRAAFNEEFEMARREEARFER
EMBLR (5 [AE8 ) BE_FT-hF=A
=t—BLEFE([RFE]) 2FH-

AEBEAFEIERERBREESBRERINK
HETERM FERHETERER UREE
MEERAEmR-

AEBEEERIMIRETZF EEAMRAR
BEEHEBRRER  BEEAMEZESBED R
HERTERBRBITEANERME  UREAE
BEBEIERHRBSFORIAERE RAE
EEBEMEABIEZERMRBRBEEEB AR
SETRTRENKRELASR AR TESER
BEBHHNBERRR BAAKEARARBERETER
RH AR -

EEBEMIABIERMRBIEEXEBERF
FHOMNEEXRB AN HREEREEBTHAMAZ
FET HAKEERELEN EBK —ERERN
EHR -AKE-STEENEHLSERARNE SRR
ENER ST ENSRRABERENLAFE
BROEE RRRAES Tk  REARE
BoBREETRR-

AEBUNFEEENRE R ZEEEERR
BREAFNBERAR (RRAF]) REEXRT
BEARQBA([ENRA)RAFEERELLTE
B 75 SR AR E RO e A
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

The Waste Recycling Company has continued to maintain
its profitability and recorded an increase in profit and profit
margin, although it experienced a decrease in revenue due
to the slowdown of growth in the production and sale of
industrial materials business. In addition, by virtue of the
increasing in the production and customer demand of the
Power Company during the Year, both its revenue and profit
recorded an increase. The management of the Group will
conduct regular reviews of the operational performance and
efficiency of the Waste Recycling Company and the Power
Company, to ensure maximizing returns to the shareholders
from those investments.

PROSPECTS

In recent years, the Group has established solid partnerships
with the world’s leading minerals companies. We look forward
to further capitalising the market share of some major types
of metal minerals transactions in the Mainland and across
Asia as a result of the strong demand for metal minerals and
related industrial raw materials in the Mainland and Southeast
Asia. With the expansion in the scale of transactions, we will
establish a more comprehensive trading system, and utilise the
latest mainstream information technology to carry out various
types of data analysis for metal mineral trading handled by the
Group. Thus, we can understand the needs of our customers
and suppliers in a more efficient and scientific way. We aim at
materialising these business opportunities, transforming them
into various incomes and profits, and maximising profits for
shareholders.

Taking full advantage of our long-standing relationships with
various business partners and continuing to leverage the
financing capability as a listed company, the Group will strive
to expand in opportunities with potential and sustainable
development, expand its revenue sources and improve
profitability, while at the same time reduce the operational
risk of the Group, to ensure its sustainable development and
maximise returns for shareholders.

EBRE (&)

BELERHEETEREMEBERMEGRK
& M BRARARERET PG TEERSH
BAEMEREEER RN ENRARAFELE
EELFAREPEREMNFE  Ya FEH &%
FRE- AREEEESEHHRARAFALENR
Al 2B R RACREL R RARERIRERER
BRREREAE R

ez

Al =

pll

MFEAEBEERERALNBEBERREL TR
BaERHEER BEELENSBEY RIAH
TERAEDBEMRAEMIGHERAFER BB
FE-—TEBRREBRIZCEBENETRERT
ETMNZBNTHNE BEEISRBOBEA - K
MEEL—AEZTENXHER ERESTS
EEXRNEMEM AAEEEEBRNZHETE
BEESIT EMEARR B MER S IR
MEPRHEEENTR EEILELERANEE
e B ASERANMAE  RRFAIEE XK

)
ZS o
I

AEBBARDMARMERSRZBEIERHZFN
RIFARREBNA LT AT ESNREES &
HWRABRENRAFHEZRNEH RS LT
RE R LA SR & B F s - R REA B E
ERR LR LETRANBERRES  BER
BIE O35 -

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥EEEZKRER A T



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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to all shareholders and business partners for their continuous
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 June 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW
o 155 1] B

OPERATIONS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was principally
engaged in sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials, production and sale of industrial products
and production and sale of utilities.

The Group had no significant material acquisitions or disposals
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Revenue and Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group recorded a decrease
in revenue, from HK$2,392,876,000 for the year ended 31
March 2018 to HK$1,296,035,000 for the year ended 31
March 2019, representing a decrease of 45.8% as compared
to last year. The Group's gross profit also decreased by 67.2%
from HK$303,177,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
HK$99,300,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The decrease in revenue and gross profit was mainly
attributable to the decrease in demand of the customers of
our sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials business during the year under review. The effect
of volatility of the global economy this year in tandem with
the depreciation of RMB, had a certain impact on the Group's
customers and in turn affected the Group’s gross profit. During
the year under review, this segment reported a segment
revenue of HK$1,023,695,000 (Year ended 31 March 2018:
HK$2,114,606,000) and a segment profit of HK$48,749,000
(Year ended 31 March 2018: HK$258,183,000), representing a
decrease of 51.6% and 81.1% respectively when compared to
last year.

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under BB E B IRRERERE FIAB R A A (literally translated
as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling Company
Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”), we have recorded
a segment revenue of HK$89,773,000 (Year ended 31 March
2018: HK$111,338,000), representing a decrease of 19.4 % as
compared to last year. The decrease in segment revenue was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the sales of one of the
industrial products. This segment reported an increase in its
segment profit by 11.9%, from HK$20,584,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 to HK$23,034,000 for the year ended 31
March 2019 due to the enhancement of production efficiency.

AL R O R

BHE_Z—NFZA=Z+—HLEFE AEEEXE
RERBERHECBROMEEIERR £ER
HETEXRERUNAEENEEARER-

AEERBE_T-NFA=+T—"BLFEY
BEANBERELESER-

WERER

REBEFE AEEHFSZKERD ABE=
- N\F=ZA=+—HIFE 22392876000/
TRAVEHE-_ZE—NF=ZA=+—HLEFEZ
1,296,035,0007% 7T * 8 & F 7 1 45.8% A &K E 2
ENTHBE_T—\F=-ZA=+—HLFEZ
303,177,000/ T 267 2%EHE —E—NLE=A
=+—H8 1% E 299,300,000/ 7T °

WEREFMBRLDEEHREEFERBREES
CEBRERDEREABIERHEBSNERL T KR
B -AFEEREERDNFENBAREN
RE HAEBEEPEN —TEHE AEENE
MITAMZEFE - REEFE O EEHRD
FH U 281,023,695,0008 L (BRZE =T —\F= A
=+ — B IEFE :2,114,606,0005 7T ) & 9 585 7
48,749,000 T (BZE—_T— \FE=-ZA=+—HIt
F 5 : 258,183,000/ 7T ) - A F 7 BlIR 251.6% &
81.1% °

NEEEERREARGKAMAFTRAA ([RRA
R ZEEREETIXAERESM S RMI8E
B0 89,773,000 T (BE-E—NF= A
=+ —HIEFE 111,338,000 7T) * B EF
19.4% - AW RO ETEHREF —EITERE
BREERL D EERZ VBRI BEBEES
T N\F=A=+—HIFE 220,584,000/ T
MI%EBE—_T-—NF=—A=+—RLFEZ
23,034,000 0 RRBIRSEEBE -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Gross Profit (continued)

For the production and sale of utilities business under ZE
KL BEBR QA (iterally translated as Ningxia Tianyuan
Power Generation Company Limited) (the “Power Company”),
we have recorded a segment revenue of HK$182,567,000
(Year ended 31 March 2018: HK$166,932,000), representing an
increase of 9.4% as compared to last year. Compared with the
segment profit of HK$13,219,000 made by the Power Company
for the year ended 31 March 2018, this segment reported a
segment profit of HK$16,795,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019, representing an increase in segment profit by 27.1%. The
increase in profit of this segment was mainly attributable to the
increase in demand of certain utilities of the Power Company
during the year under review.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily include staff costs, general
administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization.
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of HK$36,983,000 (Year ended 31
March 2018 (reclassified): HK$60,425,000), representing a
decrease of 38.8% as compared to last year. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly due to a decrease in the
staff costs.

Other Net (Loss)/Income

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
other net loss of HK$67,885,000 (Year ended 31 March 2018
(reclassified): other net income of HK$78,025,000), and
the substantial turnaround was mainly attributable to the
fluctuation of exchange rates of various foreign currencies,
mainly related to RMB and USD. Such turnaround mostly arose
from purchase transactions conducted with overseas suppliers
in foreign currencies and sales transactions with Mainland
customers in RMB, and the deep depreciation in RMB against
USD was the main reason for the exchange loss recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW
e AT

RERn O (&)

WERERN (&)
MEEATEREARAA([EHRF]ZEE
REHEAREREBKMS BMESsHKE
182,567,000 Tt (B2 —\F=A=+—HI
FJZ 166,932,000 7T ) * A FILNN9.4%  FALLE
NRARBEZZT—N\F=ZA=+—HIEFEHX
787 13,219,000 T Ik D EREEZ=ZF — 1
F=ZRA=T—HILFE2HHHEHEF16,795000%5
7T HE R D R E R A027.1% © 1tk o> $8 55 A 0
TEHRENRAARBBFEHET ARERN
ok e

THEAX

THRHAXEERFEE IHRA  —RITHRAES - TE
FEE - BE_T-NF=ZA=+—8LFE K
£ B R BT R 236,983,000 T (BE —T— N
FZA=1+—HIEFE (KEHHHH) : 60,425,000
BIT)  WEFERD388% - ITTHHEI ML EERH
REIRARD -

Hih (B8R) WAFHE
HE_Z-NF-A=Z+—BLFE AEEHSE
H i F5 18 5 %867,885,0008 T (HE_T— \F =
A=t HLtEE(KEFHE)  EMRAFHE
78,025,000/ 7T ) - Wt AIREE X ERZ RN LEINE
BERFEAH - ZEEETEHEARBERETHEE
REHRBUIINEEFIMEERETHEEI IR
NARBHBARFETHERS MARERE
THAREERNABEE-_ZE—ALF=A=+—8H
LtFEESSELNBBHNETERRA-
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BUSINESS REVIEW
e AT

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by HK$21,923,000, or 96.5% from
HK$22,709,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
HK$44,632,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019. Finance
cost represents bills discount charges derived from the bank
advances for discounted bills. The Group had made the
discounting of bills receivables to maintain certain level of
cash flows and the Group management is continuously and
carefully monitoring the Group capital structure in order to
utilize the financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
requirements and business expansion.

(Loss)/profit for the year

During the year under review, we recorded a loss for the year of
HK$70,672,000 which was an adverse result when compared to
the profit for the year of HK$233,976,000 in the previous year.
The Group's turnaround result was mainly attributable to the
depreciation in RMB against USD which had a direct negative
effect to the results of the Group’s sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$70,350,000 whereas
a profit of HK$233,638,000 was recorded in the previous year.
This represented a basic loss per share of HK0.334 cent for the
year ended 31 March 2019, whereas a basic earnings per share
of HK1.108 cent was recorded in the previous year.

The Group had no significant material acquisitions or disposals
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

RERnOpE (&)

[L5=¢2%:

B & B AN 1 121,923,000 T 5096.5% * (HE &= —
- N\F=ZA=+—H8IEFE 222,709,000/ 7T
BNEBE_T—hAhF=-A=Z=+—8HLFEZ
44,632,000/ 7T, © B & AKX A J5 R ERTTAR IR |IR B K
FTEENZEREERA - AEEC IR RKZE
HHF—TKENESTE ARASEEREEHE
NBEEERANEE ZERREILE AP B ERIA
N EEERFENERER.

FR(EE) E=R

REIEEFE - K815 F NE1870,672,00078 7T * B
EF 7 F R F233,976,00008 T AR K ELE - K
EECE¥EHETBEARARBHEETRE B
HAEBERBMEESBERY MR ITERME
ERBE-_Z-—NEF=ZA=1+t—BILFE ¥4
EEEEEZFE-

HE - Z-—AF=ZA=1t—BHIFEAQAE
A A JE (L 518 A70,350,00058 7T % F B $R 1535
F1233,638,0008 T HEREEZE=_T—NF=A
=+—HIFEZEREREE 03348 - Mk
FRIBTRERZEFN 108 -

AEERBE_T-NF-A=T—"BLFEY
BEANBREESE-
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided by
banks. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had current assets
of HK$820,738,000 (31 March 2018: HK$3,185,406,000),
comprising cash and bank balances of HK$92,373,000 (31
March 2018: HK$212,545,000).

The Group's current ratio, calculated based on current assets
of HK$820,738,000 (31 March 2018: HKS$3,185,406,000)
over current liabilities of HK$487,589,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$2,775,318,000), was at a healthy level of 1.68 (31 March
2018:1.15).

The trade payables terms of the Group’s sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials business was
by letter of credit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
first half of this year. The Group will continue to reduce the
use of letter of credit in the second half of this year in order
to minimise our selling and distribution costs. As at 31 March
2019, the Group’s trade payables and bills payables amounted
to HK$24,651,000 and HKSNil respectively (31 March 2018:
HK$121,591,000 and HK$1,123,862,000); trade receivables
and bills receivables amounted to HK$122,656,000 and
HK$416,115,000 respectively (31 March 2018: HK$96,962,000
and HK$2,277,019,000). The credit risk on bills receivables is
at a low level as such amounts are due by banks with good
reputation.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company decreased to HK$559,336,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$682,443,000). The decrease in equity attributable to owners
of the Company was mainly due to the total comprehensive
expenses recorded by the Group during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
e AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(continued)

The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated based on total
borrowings of HK$412,557,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$851,210,000) divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company plus total borrowings of HK$971,893,000 (31
March 2018: HK$1,533,653,000), was at 42% (31 March 2018:
56%).

During the year under review, the Group continued to
implement a prudent financial management policy to
protect the shareholders’ interest of the Group. With the
amount of liquid assets on hand together with advances
and credit facilities granted by banks, the management
will keep on exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain
financing activities, with the support from financial and
securities institutions and professional advisors, to meet its
ongoing operational requirements and business expansions
requirements.

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and conducted
in HKS, RMB and USD. The Group maintains a strategy in its
foreign currency risk management, primarily by including
the estimated exchange differences on currency exposure in
our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize the impact
of foreign exchange risk on the Group's profit. The Group has
entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure. The management
thus believes the current level of bank balances, certain
receivables and payables denominated in RMB and USD
expose the Group to a manageable foreign currency risk. The
management is paying vigilant attention to the fluctuation
of RMB and is constantly and closely monitoring the foreign
currency exposure. The Group will further consider using any
appropriate financial derivatives to hedge against the Group'’s
currency risk and manage its exposure.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Borrowings and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank advances for
discounted bills of HK$412,557,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$851,210,000) which were secured by the Group’s certain
bills receivables.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB1,120,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,309,000)
(31 March 2018: RMB5,167,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$6,438,000) mainly for acquisition of machineries,
equipment and related installation works for the Waste
Recycling Company.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2018: nil).
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BIOGRAPHICALDETAILSOF DIRECTORSAND SENIORMANAGEMENT

HHRELRBEHANBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Lik Man, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Aged 40, has been an employee of the Company since October
2017 and appointed as chief financial officer since 27 October
2017. Mr. Sin has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 2 March 2018 and has been
appointed as acting chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from
31 July 2018. From 14 September 2018, Mr. Sin has been
re-designated as the chairman of the Board. Mr. Sin is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sin
received a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and further received a Master in Accounting from the Curtin
University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Sin is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA")
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Mr. Sin has more than 19 years of experience in financial
control, corporate finance and capital market relations and
had taken up senior management positions in several Hong
Kong listed companies. Mr. Sin served as an independent non-
executive director in Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock
code: 1303) from December 2011 to September 2013. He was
appointed as the company secretary of West China Cement
Limited (stock code: 2233) from May 2010 to May 2012. He was
the investor relations general manager of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (formerly called Fook Woo
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 923) from June 2012 to
September 2013 and was appointed as company secretary
from June 2013 to September 2013. Mr. Sin Lik Man has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee of Kunming Dianchi Water
Treatment Co., Ltd (stock code: 3768) since 16 November 2018.
All the companies indicated above with stock code are listed in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Li Zhendong, Chief Financial Officer

Aged 39, joined the Company as an Executive Director in July
2018 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer since
September 2018. Mr. Li is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
School of Management, Xiamen University in 2003 and then
completed a Master’s degree in public administration at
Central University of Finance and Economics in 2010. He has
received training on international accounting standards from
University of lllinois, USA.

Mr. Li has more than 16 years of experience in banking and
assets management industry. He served as the accounting
manager of financial management department at the head
office of Bank of China Limited and is currently the general
manager of an investment management company in Beijing.
Mr. Li has published papers on risk management and
accounting information disclosure of the banking industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zheng Gang

Aged 51, joined the Company as a Non-executive Director
in May 2018. Mr. Zheng obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Electronic Engineering from Xiamen University in July 1989 and
a degree of Master of Business Administration from University
of Wales, College of Cardiff in the United Kingdom (currently
known as Cardiff Business School) in April 1994.

Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in management in
the finance and investment industry. Mr. Zheng was an
independent non-executive director of China Internet
Investment Finance Holdings Limited (formerly known as Opes
Asia Development Limited) (stock code: 810) from July 2012 to
May 2013. Mr. Zheng has been an executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8143) since August
2007. He has also been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Smart-Core Holdings Limited (stock code:
2166) since March 2016. All the companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFLRAEEAREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee

Aged 59, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2009. Mr. Chan obtained his
Bachelor degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong in 1982, Master degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1987 and Master
degree in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia in 2000. Mr. Chan is also a member of the CPA
Australia.

Mr. Chan is the executive director of a consultancy company
engaging in providing financial investment consultancy
services. Mr. Chan has worked in the finance and commercial
field for more than 25 years. He had been the principal
corporate planner of Airport Authority Hong Kong and was
responsible for corporate planning in the areas of commercial
and financial strategies.

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee

Aged 64, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2009. Mr. Siu obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull in
1995.

Mr. Siu is the managing director of Fortune Take International
Limited, a company engaging in providing business
consultancy services. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for more than 25 years. He had been the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America, responsible for business
development and credit risk management. Mr. Siu is also an
independent non-executive director of Sage International
Group Limited (stock code: 8082) and Get Nice Holdings
Limited (stock code: 64). All the companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David, Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee, Member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
Aged 69, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in December 2013. Dr. Ng holds a Master’s
Degree in Commerce from Macquarie University, Sydney and is
an Australian Chartered Accountant and Chartered Secretary.

Dr. Ng was graduated from The Education University of Hong
Kong with a doctor of education in June 2018. He had worked
for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong for 8 years. After
leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, Dr. Ng has been
and is currently the managing director of a certified public
accountants firm in Hong Kong. Dr. Ng was also the Qualified
Accountant for Air China Limited (stock code: 753) for the
period from November 2005 to December 2008. Currently, he is
also an independent non-executive director of Herald Holdings
Limited (stock code: 114). All the companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.

Dr. Liu Yongping, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee

Aged 63, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2018. Dr. Liu graduated from Renmin
University of China Branch No.1(FBIARKZE%E —5HK) in
1983 with a bachelor degree in law, and graduated from the
University of London in 1987 with a master degree in law. In
1994, he graduated from the University of Oxford with a doctor
of philosophy.

Dr. Liu has profound knowledge in the laws of the PRC, Hong
Kong and England. Dr. Liu is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Since
1994, Dr. Liu has embarked in areas on listing application for
PRC based companies in Hong Kong and work on merger and
acquisition. He is acquainted with matters concerning the
listing rules in Hong Kong.

Dr. Liu has been appointed as independent non-executive
directors of Yue Da International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629)
and Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 401) since
June 2010 and February 2014, respectively. All the companies
indicated above with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ho Yan, Julian, Company Secretary, Authorised
Representative and Deputy Chief Financial Officer

Aged 39, joined the Company as the Company Secretary in
October 2017. He obtained his degrees of Master of Corporate
Governance and Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Leung is a fellow
member of the ACCA, the HKICPA, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Leung has more than 18 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and corporate governance. He served as the chief
financial officer and company secretary in Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code: 3608) from
2013 to 2017. Mr. Leung had worked in KPMG, an international
CPA firm, for over 10 years. He is a committee member of
ACCA Hong Kong. Mr. Leung is also a member of the panel of
adjudicators in the Hong Kong Management Association Best
Annual Reports Awards 2019. The company indicated above
with stock code is listed in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
o

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials, production and
sale of industrial products and production and sale of utilities.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review” section
set out on pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 15 of this annual report
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 61 to 62.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 200 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

EEMAREAEERE _T-NF=HA=+—
BULEFEZERREEZFRAMBRE -

FTEXRBREBORE

RRARB—RREZERAR - HNBRAREEZNRE
REMHFESBRMEABIERN £ERKEE
TEREM AREENRBEEAHAEM-

BERTHED (BB EDIF622F ) I R5FTHRE A
SEERNE—THREIN (BIEASEFEY
FERBETEERZ B BEEFLEARME
FHAEBRERENEEEZHNFBERAEERE
A e MR RERNDRAR) I D 2
MAFHEITEZIBE 2 [ERME] LEI10BE15
B ¥BEE] M -ZEdmBERAREN—

oo

RER DK

ANEBRBE_T—NF-ZA=Z+T—BUILFEZ
¥EHNFOIEEZRA RGBT R EEEER
FEMEmKRER -

EEETRBRNEE-_T—NAF=A=+—8
IFFEZERBRE(ZE—N\F 8)-
TFEMBERE
FRARBAAKERERGAMBBERNAEKHE
REELBYRFEZHEEE BERABZH

B HNAFRE200E - B2 W TR EZLS
BUBHRR 2 — 8y

Annual Report 2018/19 £ %{ 2018/19

21



22

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$23,996,000 (2018:
HK$31,502,000).

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2019 is nil (2018: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated as Acting Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 31 July 2018,
appointed as Chairman on 14 September 2018)
Mr. Li Zhendong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed as Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer on 31 July 2018 and
14 September 2018 respectively)
Mr. Hu Haifeng (resigned as Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director on 31 July 2018)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Zheng Gang (appointed on 28 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David

Dr. Liu Yongping (appointed on 5 June 2018)

In accordance with bye-law no. 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick and
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David, will retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’ emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Sin Lik Man has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of Audit Committee of
Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3768),
a listed company in Hong Kong, on 16 November 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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As at 31 March 2019
RZE-NE=ZA=1+-H

Approximate

percentage of

the Company's

issued

Capacity and Number of Number of share capital

Name of directors nature of interests shares held  share options held Total interests (Note)

EEARERT

REZBHE DL

4B BRRERLE FiRA#E FisBERERE BnaE (Biit)

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George Beneficial owner 10,000,000 = 10,000,000 0.05%
REZEE BEREBA

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick Beneficial owner 7,000,000 - 7,000,000 0.03%
BEBELE ERBEAA

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David Beneficial owner 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.04%
REREL ERBAA

Note:  The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2019, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests, which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012 for
the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company adopted on
6 January 2003 was terminated on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. As at 31 March 2019, no share options were
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE

SFO

As at 31 March 2019, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

BEBEEFRMERHIATIRE 2 BRE
mRRE

RIB-NF=ZA=+—0 BREARZEFR
HEEPIFEB6IEMEFE 2 EEELMATCE T
FIANTHBARR S BITIRAS%K A LA -

Long positions in the shares of the Company REATRGBZHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held the Company'’s

Capacity and as at 31 March issued share capital

Name of shareholder nature of interest 2019 (Note 5)

R-E-hF ERARE BT

=ZHA=+-H BRAEZBHNED L

RERZEEZ8B SORERMEE i3k 4E (Hi25)

Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
e P AR 2 s (Hftn)

Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
=637 Z- DN (Hfit1)

Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
JERRAT P AR 2 s (Hfit2)

Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
=637 Z- DN (Hfit2)

China Huarong Asset Management Person having a security interest in shares 1,971,000,000 9.35%
Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong Asset (Note 3 and 4)

Management”)

HEEREEERRNAERAA HROHFHAEREERHOAL (Hfit3%4)

([HEEREEER])
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO (continued)

Long positions in the shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO.

Beaverway Limited (“Beaverway”) was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Linewear Assets Limited (“Linewear”); Linewear
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (“Huarong International”), which
in turn was a 51.00% interest subsidiary of Camellia Pacific
Investment Holding Limited (“Camellia”), Camellia was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (“China Huarong International”), which in
turn was a 88.10% interest subsidiary of Huarong Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (ZEF F ¥ B2 7)) ("Huarong Real Estate (£ &4
E2)"); and Huarong Real Estate (ZEFIE %) was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Huarong Asset Management.

Accordingly, each of Beaverway, Linewear, Huarong
International, Camellia, China Huarong International,
Huarong Real Estate (¥ g & ¥ ) and China Huarong
Asset Management is deemed to be interested in these
1,971,000,000 shares under the SFO.

China Huarong Asset Management and its subsidiaries ceased
to have a security interest in shares of the Company on 4 April
2019 as such person(s) has/have ceased to have any security
interest in the 1,971,000,000 shares of the Company.

The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019
as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other
relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,
would have to be recorded in the said register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
of directors and in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 54% and approximately 100% respectively of
the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
52% and approximately 99% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by
the operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and
the Power Company and a system for the management of
environment, air emission, water resources, soil, waste and
energy.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.

With employees being its cornerstone for success and key
to the development of core competency, the Group makes
every effort to ensure its operation is compliant with laws
and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention. The Group also stays
connected with its customers and suppliers and has ongoing
communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and
physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the
ordinary shares of the Company is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment and operations
shall accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group’s operation
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of about 308
employees and directors (2018: 305). The Group's staff costs,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to HK$56,132,000
(2018: HK$69,203,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, subsidised training programme, share
option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019 had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
before they are duly approved by the Board under the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events undertaken after the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Sin Lik Man
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has continued to implement appropriate corporate
governance practices to ensure transparency, accountability
and effective internal control. The Board has adopted the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for
the year ended 31 March 2019, which contains the Company’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published in the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites no
later than 3 months after the publication of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board’s primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate strategies,
to establish policies and plans, to oversee management of the
Group, to evaluate the performance of the Group, to assess
the achievement of targets set by the Board periodically
and to review and approve annual and interim results and
other significant financial and operational matters under
the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board is
directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
responsibility of day-to-day management and operations of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Li
Zhendong (Chief Financial Officer), one Non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Zheng Gang, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick, Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David and Dr. Liu Yongping.

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and risk management committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report are
detailed on pages 36 to 47 of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” sets out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 16 to 20 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on
the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting matters
affecting the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, eleven regular Board
meetings and the 2018 Annual General Meeting were held. The
attendance records of each director is set out as follows:

EEggERRRAE
BE-T-AF-A=+ALFE EFER
TH—REMEHR T \FRIAFAE %
EFZHRBERRIIMT

Number of attendance

R E
2018
Annual General
Board meetings Meeting
—E-N\E
Name of Director EENR EEER3 BRERBFXRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Sin Lik Man X EAE 11/11 1/1
Mr. Li Zhendong FRREE(R=ZF—/NEF 4/4 1/1
(appointed on 31 July 2018) +tA=Z+—HEZFE)
Mr. Hu Haifeng HHBEREE (RZF—NF 6/7 -
(resigned 31 July 2018) +A=+—HEE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zheng Gang B A (R=ZFE—NF 9/9 1/1
(appointed on 28 May 2018) AA=-FNNAEZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FEHITEE
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PR B S A 11/11 1/1
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEREE 11/11 1/1
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David RIFRE+ 11/ 0/1
Dr. Liu Yongping BBEFEL (R=ZFE-NF 6/6 1/1

(appointed on 5 June 2018)

The annual general meeting ("AGM”) of the Company was held
on 14 September 2018. The forthcoming AGM of the Company
will be held on 6 September 2019 (meeting agenda will be
provided in the Notice of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our
Directors, company secretary and other senior executives of
the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the shareholders. All
Directors treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM held annually.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 for the year
described below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Hu
Haifeng (“Mr. Hu") has been serving as both the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company for the periods from
1 April 2018 to 31 July 2018. Mr. Sin Lik Man (“Mr. Sin”) has
been appointed as acting chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company with effective from 31 July 2018 to fill the
vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Hu on 31 July 2018.
Mr. Sin was re-designated as chairman with effective from 14
September 2018 and continued to act as chief executive officer
of the Company. For the rest of the financial year ended 31
March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Sin has
been serving as both the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2019, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference
materials to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s
business operations and Board’s policies. The Company is
committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development.
Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Kwong Fat, George and Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David, and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Sin Lik Man (appointed on 31
July 2018).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e S

FHEES

FMEESERIUNALRERTAZEEEE
BEEE R _T-NAF=ZA=1+—R0 FMZAR
ERNEKEENR  BE=Z2BUIFNTES A
MEREE (XF) REZBELEMRFREL U
R—2HTEF NANXEE (RZT-N\FL
R=+—HEZE)-

FMEES T ERAEARARFZRESER
REBE2FMBRMRBENESSRHER &
EEMNATEERERERE 2 HMFE WL
HTEEZFMME=TSRHER -FTMEZEEN
BERVEANRBRAEZRF  AREREBHMH
BERNEE BASECHESRENRIBEA
SEREFHEAG Z2H M BRAFMS2REARAK
RARBARTGEHEARNMETE - FHEES
BEGSEZE2XARARR LB AEEER-

The Remuneration Committee met five times during the year #HZE=E—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE FTMHEEE
ended 31 March 2019 to review the remuneration packages for #2177 A A EHFUEHNES 2 HMHTFSHE  SKEZ
Directors. The attendance records of each member is set outas /& 1B R EFI a0
follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member REHE HERE
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Chairman) BEREE(ER) 5/5
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PREZ A& 5/5
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David RFBREL 5/5
Mr. Sin Lik Man HENX R E
(appointed on 31 July 2018) (R=ZFE—-—NF+A=1+—HEZF) 1/1
Mr. Hu Haifeng HAE I8 ST A&
(resigned on 31 July 2018) (RZZFB-NF+HA=1+—HEFHF) 3/4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2019, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George (Chairman), Mr.
Siu Hi Lam, Alick and Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David, and one Executive
Director, namely Mr. Sin Lik Man (appointed on 31 July 2018).

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the“Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013 which set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) in January 2019 to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of Nomination Committee as provided in its
terms of reference.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Recommended candidates

The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for directors
to it by any directors or shareholders; provided that
in the case of shareholder recommendations, such
recommendations comply with all applicable notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s bye-laws,
the procedures for a shareholder’'s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting and the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may also
consider, in its sole discretion, any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any
source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise
good judgment, to provide the commitment to
enhancing shareholder value, practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed
in the context of the then-current composition of the
board, the operating requirements of the Company
and the long-term interests of all shareholders.
In conducting this assessment, the Nomination
Committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider
diversity and such other factors as it deems appropriate
given the then-current and anticipated future needs of
the board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills
on the board. The Nomination Committee may also
consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
above diversity perspectives, taking into account the
Company’s business model and needs, are set out in a
Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Independence

The Nomination Committee shall ensure that at least
one-third of the board members (or such other number
of the members of the board as prescribed by the
Listing Rules from time to time) meet the definition of
independent non-executive director. The Nomination
Committee shall annually assess each nominee for
independent non-executive director by re-viewing
any potential conflicts of interest that he or she and
their immediate family members (as defined in the
Listing Rules) may have, based on the criteria for
independence set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
A retiring independent non-executive director who has
served the board for a period of nine consecutive years
or more is eligible for nomination by the board to stand
for re-election at a general meeting provided that he or
she is still considered independent by the board.

Nominee evaluation process

The Nomination Committee will consider as a
candidate any director who has indicated his or her
willingness to stand for re-election and any other
person who is recommended by any shareholders.
The Nomination Committee may also undertake its
own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional firms or other third parties to
assist in identifying and evaluating potential nominees.
The Nomination Committee may use any process
it deems appropriate for the purpose of evaluating
candidates which is consistent with those set forth in
its terms of reference, the Company’s bye-laws, the
corporate governance policy and the policy described
herein; provided that the process used for evaluating a
nominee for each election or appointment of directors
shall be substantially similar and under no circum-
stances shall the Nomination Committee evaluate
nominees recommended by a shareholder pursuant
to a process that is substantially different than that
used for other nominees for the same election or
appointment of directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

Nomination procedures

The company secretary shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from board members, if any, for
consideration prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by board members. For filling
a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the board for its
consideration and recommendation. Until the issue of
the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall
not assume that they have been proposed by the board
to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience),
and any other information, as required pursuant to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the pro-posed
candidates. A shareholder can serve a notice to the
board of directors or the company secretary within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect a certain person as a director in
accordance with the relevant procedures posted on the
Company’s website. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular. A candidate is allowed to
withdraw his or her candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
board of directors or the company secretary. The board
shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting. Shareholder proposed resolutions
shall take the same form as the resolutions proposed
for the candidates recommended by the board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A SRR

REEZEE (H)

(e)

RERF
RAWERARREZESSR YHFE
FERERABMEA(F) UHREE
BEERAENER-REZBEENARS
WHEEGKERBIEREA - HARBHER
B REZBEGKREHEBER UHES
SEBRIE -RERREARKRAE L
2EME REZEEHMEFRAUHR
ERMELHERER -BEETIERRBRA
I BRBATTISRACEEZTSEZERN
BRAGLS®E-

RREHEHEEERENBERAG LE2E
MREANER BRRBEFE—DBEK-
B KA IR EE AR  RAIBOEBRR
EoBARZEEANES BEMGL (R
FBEERAABER) A REMEMER IR
RABRBERAR R B PTSMERREFRIR
HBMBARARNEESXRANEE LA
M RPAHAEREZHEFEALREEES
FIRER - AHERREANFEHEBR
ER/IHABHTET2EBRRIAHES
Z o RE AT R BRR ARG RIT A EARRER
EESR QAW RLEMANRE-ES
ERFRERZEREANTABRASE S
BB EERARKRTER - BRIEZHR
BEAEBEEGERRBEANWRBRT A —
o

Annual Report 2018/19 £ %{ 2018/19

43



44

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e S S

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the board composition and
independence of independent non-executive directors, and
considered the suitability of those retiring directors standing
for re-election at the next annual general meeting as well
as the need for a director succession plan. The Nomination
Committee also re-viewed the Nomination Policy and
the Diversity Policy and discussed the objectives set for
implementing the latter, and noted that those objectives had
been achieved. The Nomination Committee concluded that the
board composition should continue unchanged.

The Nomination Committee met five times during the year
ended 31 March 2019 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assess the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; review
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-election of director. The attendance records of each
member is set out as follows:
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HE-_Z-NF=-A=+—HILFE RLELEY
B EEG ZHEREBYIIENTEE 2B IE I
EZRRTERRBFAG LERETZRAES
REAE URBFHETABHBIZEE-RELZE
BeNRARABBERZICEE  WilmAHET
BEMBEZEEZE IERZEEZCLEER R
HREEGIRBAES S ZHEKERETE

HE-_Z-NF=-A=+—HILFE RLELEE
BOTHARSEUENESTS 2 2B HERA
B R ARRBY ENITERE 2B BT
hEREEEEERTRNESSREZR -SKE
ZHEREBERESNAT

Number of

attendance

Name of member REHS HEIRE

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George (Chairman) PREZESE (EFE) 5/5

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick WEREE 5/5

Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David RFREL 5/5
Mr. Sin Lik Man B

(appointed on 31 July 2018) (R=ZFE—-—NF+A=1+—HEZF) 2/2
Mr. Hu Haifeng HAg I ST A&

(resigned on 31 July 2018) (RZZFB-NF+H=1+—HEFHF) 2/3

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2019,
the Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick and Dr. Liu
Yongping (appointed on 5 June 2018).

BEREES

ERZESRRUNALRERTAZEEE®
BREEE R _T-NF=ZA=1+—R BKZXAR
CHOABYIFATESMEN  DRFREL (X
F) RERLE WEBELERIBIEL (R
E-NFRALRAEZRE)-
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control
principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also delegated
the corporate governance function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance within
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BEREEE (H)

ERZECTEEAEMNESSRAVBERK
RERES IR R AR BA RN R B B ENEER -
BEREZESNCEETESS 2T AR U
ER REMEBRASEAZCEEREGREIE
BERZECHBEHE 2N AREAR R R
Puh &R -

websites.
The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended #HZEZ—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE BEZELET
31 March 2019 and the attendance records of each memberis 2177 =X @& SXKEZHEBREFIWOT :
set out as follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member REHS HERE
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman) REREL (XE) 3/3
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PREZ A& 3/3
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEBRLE 3/3
Dr. Liu Yongping (appointed on 5 June 2018) BBEFET (R=ZFE-NEAAHEZF) 2/2
The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee MW TNAAFEEZZESET 2 TIERM:
during the year:
. reviewed and discussed the audited financial BRI wmAEEHE-_ZT—NLF=A

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 and recommended to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the
corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2018 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

. reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

=T HALEFEZEBRRPBERE  LEH
BExeTUE:

. ERNECRERTHAETEERATALZ
ERARBERERREZHERE

. EHLARAREBE_T-N\FAA=T
AIEANEAZ REEZMBRE - WERAE
EET I

. RERERAAARMMENRTRTLE
FEAEE 2 & R RIE PILA R E 0

=

EII
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

. reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group;

. reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

. engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2019, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2019, the Risk Management Committee
comprises four members, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, Dr. Liu
Yongping (appointed on 5 June 2018) and one Executive
Director, namely Mr. Li Zhendong (appointed on 14 September
2018).

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of the
risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board on the same. The full
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.

BEREEE (H)

. BHARRMBRESE  RREERAE
MBEPEZ IR I E 2 R e FE R 1

. ER R ERRR Bz ME KRG
K ARBHUARBA B EEEE I
MEETREEHR:

. BREEXEREAREETARRERRS
Ko B B RF A

WEBAG BREARCENAE-T-NF=
A=+ ALEEzERRTEEENS  DRE
EFE T

EREEESS

ARBAR-_ZF-—RAF+—AZF+T=ZBRIARE
BZREg YRR UZHEEABERE R _-F
—NE=ZA=+—HB EREBRZESHEEKE
MR BR-Z2BYFNTES RFREL (X
B) BRERALE BEBREERIBTEL (R
E-NFRALBEZE) UR—FBRTES A
FRREE(RZZE-—N\FAATOEREE) -

RRERZEEIERERMNASEARMAR
EIEMAEREE R R EARBE - MERE SR E 2
AR A ERE B YR AEESFELEE - A
REEREEREHEZE2XANARF KRB R
FAuL &R -
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2019 to identify risk on Group’s operation; to
review and recommend to the Board the interim review reports

EREEZEEE (H)

BE_ZT-NF=ZA=+t-"BHLFE AREEZ
BERTTMAGE UBSIAEELELZR
B EHEAREERAMBEZENT MBI RE AL

on risk management and internal control. The attendance of FLWAZEESELHEER -SHE ZHFEBERH
each member is set out as follows: FIEAT ¢
Number of
attendance
Name of member REEE IR E
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman) REREL (EFE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PR B ST A& 2/2
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick mERELE 2/2
Mr. Li Zhendong PIRFREE
(appointed on 14 September 2018) (R=ZF—NFNA+HHEZ(F) 11

Mr. Sin Lik Man (appointed on 31 July 2018,
ceased on 14 September 2018)

EAXRE(R=ZF—NF+LA=+—H
BEF R-F-NFAATHBEL) =

Mr. Hu Haifeng HRg I &
(resigned on 31 July 2018) (R=ZFE—-—NFLA=1+—HFF) 11

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to
60 of this annual report.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable to
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”), the auditor of the Company:

BB R BT B =

BRARRIINEZEMEARARAREE_ZE—NF
A=+ ALFEGRAMERRZET 2R
B AR FRESSZ608 2 [BILZEERE | — &
I*‘IO

RAFER CNHEBNARRZBME T EE
(BB GHMEBEMERAR (BEEEZE
BT :

HKS$’000
FET

Fees for audit services (Note a) “ERE BB (Kita) 1,200
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) ERBRB 2 BR (Mib) 228
Total 5t 1,428
Notes: BisE:
(a) The audit services provided by Crowe. (a) R RS B = AR
(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe. (b) FEREREHE B EERTR M-
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions, the Board
has delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee which
include the following:

(@) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

EERMBRRZMBRBREIE

EEgRAAARFRIPHRE REFZEHR
oA LR A R B A B AR E AR AF H 2 B T 75
BREZ2H—ETRIF BHMEZRIER 2 FE -

EXCHARSFURBREARRBE_FT—IF
A=+t -BLEFENGEUBHRR2EE-

EREBMEE
ARVEFRETOETAMEIBERRL &

FECHETERERABERRTERZBRER
RREEZES BRENTSA:

@  HIEMBREARRZERERARRNER
TREESRERR:

b) BAREREEREREEASBZEIR
REERER:

@ BAREEARRETERNEERES
HmBERER:

d HIE BAIEREEREFERIRTE
AIRARFM: &

e WHAARBETEEEARATHZERLE
EERBRESNZHE-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The
systems, including a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use, and maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The systems
are set up to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement of financial statements or
lost of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitors the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It evaluates and determines the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of the
Group'’s risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group's
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can have access to
sensitive and confidential inside information.

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2019
in accordance with the requirements under code provision C.2
of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review agreed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.

REBREERAIMERE (F)

EREE SREEAR BEEERHABETER
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian (“Mr. Leung”) was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 27 October 2017.
The biographical details of Mr. Leung are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 20 of this annual report. Mr. Leung
has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law no. 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting;
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at

general meetings (continued)

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law no. 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company'’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company'’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3201-09,
32th Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy in March 2019. The
Company'’s dividend policy allows the shareholders of the
Company to share the profits of the Company whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. According
to the Company’s dividend policy, in addition to the final
dividends, the Company may declare interim dividends or
special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

. the Group’s general financial condition;

. the Group’s working capital and debt level;

. the Group’s liquidity position;

. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group;

. future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Group’s lenders;

. the general market conditions;

. the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Group; and

. any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda,
the articles of association of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that div-
idends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥ 3 A% 5 i e

A\ Crowe

BEEEE (BE) StMEHRERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

B REE TSIRET 7R IBEF09E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to
199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M S A% L R

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BARETEE
BAREAFESRERMNEXZHE  RAHAH
FAMBRRNETRAEENTR GLFEHEE
ERPBABREAVBRRLD AT RBET
REMN - ZHTEHELETRREHEBFNER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Valuation of trade and bills receivables

Refer to notes 2(i)(i), 2(k) and 18 to the consolidated

financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$122,656,000 and bills receivables amounted to
approximately HK$416,115,000 as at 31 March 2019.

RZE-NF=Z=A=+—B EKRESFRENAR
122,656,000/ 7T » i f& Y =45 R 49 /3416,115,00078 7T ©

Management make estimates when assessing
impairment provision of trade and bills receivables.
The estimates were made based on the ageing of the
receivables balances, debtors’ credit quality, likelihood
of collection, historical write-off experience and current
market conditions.

R EREKE ZRBRERNRERBR  EEEE
b E - ARG TR R IR SRR A AR e ~ ETS A
WEEE R WRIFKIA AT AL - B M RE 8 N & Al
MRAES o

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because assessing recoverability of debts involves
a significant degree of judgement and estimation by
management.

BB ERSERBFFE WA REEES U
BWROEEM AR R B4 ES AT E RS K
EIRE(EHEARIRE B HBT R fhEt e

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

BWEZRERZEME

FL2MBRAMBHRERMET20)) 2k R 18R T
®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EFREEAREENSE

we obtained direct confirmations from a selected
sample of debtors and from banks for the bills

receivables
HMEmMENGEREARBTHEKERENERE
"R

we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the validity
and completeness of sales and bank advices for
the acceptance of bills to gain assurance for the
outstanding trade and bills receivables

HPIBEART INED S KB AR & IR TT
AR EBRABHH BRI R BN - st R E
Y FE K E 5 A R R RS R E

we assessed the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates on the
impairment provision of the receivables balances
and the extent of loss allowance required

BB EERE R BRSSO BERE
KPR E L BB B IR E B MK IB R AT Y

BRa&

FRBEZRARAF



Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M S A% G R

REMBBRRRERBAREUIINERS

EEFUHHEMEERAR -ROESERTENFER
AW EEMER BT REGAMBEHRRREFE
R AZ B &

BRHGREMBHREANERL TREEMES &
TR TR EEMERBERETAZANEEL

=A
Afg ©

WEZGEEMBHRERMS  RANETRMELM
R EIBEEY EEEMEERTRLGEAMF
BRIBMEZFABETATHEOBAFEEXN
B REUF FEEAERRANBER

ERFFPERTOHIHE DREMABS/EMER
FHEEARHERRL RMAFTEREZEFE-HEES
B P EEREERERS -

EEDGAUMBRRARENER

EXAAERBEBEEGTOASRMNETEMS
SRR EBARGINBKEREREEEN
FEMGEEMBERE  YHERBRERE MR
ROBRBE T EEARKFRBERMEBNEAH
RELFTFE A BEE B R -

ERBGRAMBREAE EFARNE EXEF
BRRENREEN YHEERBATHRERSELS

BRHEE URERFECLESSTER RIFE
EEER EREBRUFLLE JHEHGE
BB TR.

EFEERZEERD TRIREES
MBmEBENEE-

i
i
i

\
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M S A% L R

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

RBMRERGREVBRRAAENELE

BANBER RHSRAMBRRBEBRES T FER
REGFRERM BN B A FEREAIRG SRR
F YHASREMERNZBEMRE ARER
REREQTE (—NN\—F)FORNREER
ERBRES Rtz AREHELMBEMN-
BPETIAARENAD  HEAMEMALREN
EEERRE

BERBESKFHRE ETERERRELR
AAERBETME EX - EXBRRATERA
BEEIR - FRARPRAL P A R ERFF SRR Bl - IR A
BEEHTMEBNERLERAETERAUBR
RERERBESE M RR AL RERTE » B
BRMERRAATRERSENKN

EREEAREIETETNBRES  RIER
TERHE RETEREREE B

c ask Bl AN BF Ay BB X BREF S BE R T G B & B
BRRFEERE R R - RET R
TRETIEFABE G LLE R - A RERT -
MEENETRE FARMAERNER-
BHREGFRRESRBER BE E5ER-
ERRA - SO BRARES 2 £ B R
BE B IR A MG M MM E RS R R A
RENREEERE G RMERMNEKRER
BR st & fL g

TR R PO B - AR EHE R &
EHRF BE LY B EE L
AR BRER -
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M S A% G R

. AEEEMRASARENREEREY
SRHEF AR REN SR -

. HEERAKBERKESTERNREHE
s o RIFFFERNETRE BESE
FHEEFHESIENABNEANTHEENL - 1
MAEEHY BERENFKEKEENE
EERRE - MREMRBFEEATHEE
1% BN EERBMBREPIRGEERE T
ERAMBERRTHNMEREKE REFHEN
BETR ARMEEERFEREER-
BPMEmEERNZEENRE B LPTEUS
BVERHRE - AT RRFEKBRAES
M BEEBETHREEKE-

. FHER S ISR BTy = - AR
NS BREEE URGAVBREES
BRI ZMEIR -

. O BEEEAERIEBEHNUBER
EEG R BENELRE UWEHRAR
BHRRERBER -RMAEE BEXEETH
A EBEMART RARBAERAER
A

BMPEEZZBQRRT (AHRERE)ENEST
HELFELHFURBEAEFTERS  BHRME
At R Rl BB I B (R AT R ERRE o

BRTRAEZZESRRENR  FHARMEHTS
BB MEMAEERERER Y ERMFERET
EEAEMNRA RS ELMIBIL NG REME
IR A REERANBRT B EEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M S A% L R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Alvin Yeung Sik Hung.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2019

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P0O5206

HREZZEEBBNERT RMEEWLER
HAPGEVBBRENEAR/ER  AMBKE
REFTFH  RAERBERETRAELERE
BRIBRRDERT AT ARKEELFIR - R
FENBEAT WRAERBERMBEHERE
FIRERNBERREBEBELN DR E - HFDR
ETEERETEBZER-

HARBYZHENRENETHEABATEH
oo

BERE (FR)EMEEMARAE
PIE B AT
8 —E-NFANATHEA

BEB
) 2 EE 47 57 P05206
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
A 0 1R AR R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes HKSs’000 HKS'000
Bra FET FET
(reclassified)
(EFHE
Revenue U #5 4(a) 1,296,035 2,392,876
Cost of sales $HE KA (1,196,735) (2,089,699)
Gross profit EX 99,300 303,177
Other net (loss)/income Hib (F518) WA FHE 5 (67,885) 78,025
Selling and distribution costs $HE &9 SHA A (10,722) (11,191)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (36,983) (60,425)
(Loss)/profit from operations " (BE) ORR (16,290) 309,586
Finance costs BE KA 6(a) (44,632) (22,709)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (BE),S&F 6 (60,922) 286,877
Income tax P 7(a) (9,750) (52,901)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (FE),wH (70,672) 233,976
Attributable to: TH AL

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N (70,350) 233,638
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = (322) 338
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FE) ER (70,672) 233,976
HK cent HK cent
AL Al

(Loss)/earnings per share BR (&R BF 11
Basic 2R (0.334) 1.108
Diluted e (0.334) 1.108

The notes on pages 69 to 199 form part of these financial E69H ZEF19B 2 AZEMBRE 22—
b2

o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A B 1H 2 e L Al 2 1 K2R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FE) R (70,672) 233,976
Other comprehensive (expenses)/ rEE HMERE (X))
income for the year W 2
Item that may be reclassified RERBAIEEFDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz 2IAE ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BREWEB A BB RREE
financial statements of subsidiaries ZEHZER (52,398) 69,003
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income AFEE M2 (FAX) s
for the year (net of nil tax (2018: nil)) (MBREHRB(ZE—N\F:Z)) (52,398) 69,003
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income ZNEE2H (FX) WEEEE
for the year (123,070) 302,979
Attributable to: THALER:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N (123,107) 303,190
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR = 37 (211)
(123,070) 302,979

The notes on pages 69 to 199 form part of these financial 2E69H ZEF19B 2 AZSHBRE 22—
v

o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ak B B B IR DL A

AT 31 MARCH 2019 R-—ZE—hF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\EF
Notes HKS’000 HKS'000
ok FET F&ET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 13 213,265 258,402
Prepaid land lease payments TE -+ 3 7 &R IE 14 3,393 3,693
Goodwill [EES 15 - =
Other intangible asset HthmEEE 16 - =
Deferred tax assets TRIEF IR E B 24(b) 47 49
Rental deposit HeEe 19 1,321 2,013
218,026 264,157
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 17 48,878 49,495
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 IE R IR 18 538,771 2,373,981
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFEIE - e REMEYK
receivables RIE 19 140,275 548,846
Prepaid land lease payments T - & RIE 14 72 77
Tax recoverable A B Y 5 18 24(a) 369 462
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFED 20(a) 92,373 212,545
820,738 3,185,406
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables FER B S IERER 21 24,651 1,245,453
Accruals, deposits and other payables EFTER Re Rk
H Ath fE AT 5108 22 42,815 636,382
Bank advances for discounted bills IRITERIR IR BAEK 23 412,557 851,210
Tax payable iANE A 24(a) 7,566 42,273
487,589 2,775,318
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 24(b) 66 66
Net assets EEFE 551,109 674,179
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S i L S Ll

AT 31 MARCH 2019 R=—Z—hFE=A=+—8

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
Notes HKs’000 HKS000
Hiat FHET FET
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners RRARGER ANEIEER
of the Company
Share capital [N 25(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves [ 555,119 678,226
559,336 682,443
Non-controlling interests R ER (8,227) (8,264)
Total equity ERBE 551,109 674,179

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson A =ZF — L F /N A+ AL EF gt R g

14 June 2019. 17
Mr. Sin Lik Man Mr. Li Zhendong
HHFRE FRELE
Director Director
E B

The notes on pages 69 to 199 form part of these financial 5698 £51998 2 Wi A EM 5 MmEK 2 — &b

4N o

statements. 7]

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥R E 181K AR A 3



FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=ZA=+—HBLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARFEEAER
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital  Statutory Contributed  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserve profits Total interests equity
RE  RGEE AHRE EXEE  EERE  ESES  EXRE  REEN A FRRER ERAE
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL TEL TEL TEL TAL TR TAT TAT TAT
At 1 April 2017 R-E-+t%mA-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 4,040 31,960 (29,585) 320322 379,253 (8,053) 371,200
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - 233,638 233,638 338 233,976
Exchange differences on translation of & B2 7B K&
financial statements of subsidiaries EEZERZR - - - - - - 69,52 - 69,552 (549) 69,003
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) 2 E M/
for the year (AR @ - - - - - - 69,552 233,638 303,190 Q1) 302979
Transfer from retained profits to AREAFERE
statutory reserves AEHE - - - - 7027 - - (7,027) - - -
Utilisation of reserve BAkE - - = = (235) = o 25 o o o
At31 March 2018 R-2-N\%F
=ZR=t+-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 10,832 31,960 39,967 547,168 682,443 (8,264) 674,179
At 1 April 2018 R=F-\EmA-A 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 10,832 31,960 39,967 547,168 682,443 (8,264) 674,179
Loss for the year FABR - - - - - - - (70,350)  (70,350) (322) (70672
Exchange differences on translation of & B2 7 &1 K%
financial statements of subsidiaries EEZERER - - - - - - (52,757) - (52,757) 359 (52,398)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  F A2 (F3)/
for the year [iag - - - - - - (52,757) (70350  (123,107) 37 (123,070)
Transfer from retained profits to BREGNERE
statutory reserves AEHE - - - - 6,247 - - (6,247) - - -
Utilisation of reserve BAkE - - - - (516) - - 516 - - -
At 31 March 2019 R-2-1%
=ZA=t-B 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 16,563 31,960 (12,790) 471,087 559,336 (8,227) 551,109

The notes on pages 69 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maBlaeimER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HE -_ZT— hFE=A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
B it FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrBIAT (E518) R F (60,922) 286,877
Adjustments for: HATFIBEEL 2R
Finance costs BE KA 6(a) 44,632 22,709
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BRER&E
plant and equipment ZIBEFE 6(c) - 15
Written off of property, Y3 - B KR i 8
plant and equipment 6(c) 1,918 2,798
Amortisation of prepaid land TE T 4 0 78 & SR IE 8
lease payments 6(c) 72 73
Depreciation for property, e
plant and equipment ZIE 6(c) 27,812 32,631
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative TEEeMIAZARE
financial instruments (Wz=) B#E 5 (845) 65,467
Interest income 2 HA 5 (538) (352)
Unrealised foreign exchange REIBE N
loss/(gain) Eia (k) 2,982 (139,279)
76,033 (15,938)
15,111 270,939
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESRD
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEZ (Em,wmd (2,432) 8,076
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JEWE SHIERERZ
bills receivables A () 1,682,379 (689,815)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRAFE ek
deposits and other receivables H M fE IR R IE 2
A () 362,869 (492,852)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits EEE) 2 R
on operating activities RITFRZ B - 7,916
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ENESHERERZ
bills payables CRA) /% (1,139,426) 289,379
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, EEER ek
deposits and other payables HAth fE T 5018 2
OR4) /1 (531,273) 423,117
372,117 (454,179)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A ERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2019 2018
—2-NF AN
Notes HKS’000 HKS'000
ok FET F&ET
CASH GENERATED FROM/ KB,/ (AR)EEEE
(USED IN) OPERATIONS ZEE 387,228 (183,240)
Income taxes paid B FTEE
Hong Kong BE 24(a) (38,313) (19,136)
PRC i 24(a) (5,975) (10,605)
(44,288) (29,741)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ KB,/ (AR)EEEE
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEFEE 342,940 (212,981)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Payment for the purchase of property, XNBEME HER
plant and equipment R IR (17,733) (11,705)
Proceeds from sale of property, plantand HEWE  BE LR EZ
equipment Fri8 58 - 84
Interest received B W F & 218 48
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARBREESH2HEESFE
ACTIVITIES (17,515) (11,573)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RAEBERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HKS’000 HKS000
BiaF FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Al & EE
Interest paid BEARFLE (43,898) (16,671)
Proceeds from bank advances for SRITRRIR ZIERATR 2
discounted bills FriS 8 1,005,662 1,421,321
Repayment of bank advances for BRIRITAMIR BB IR
discounted bills (1,389,086) (992,721)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (FR) HREBRMEEFEH >
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEFHR (427,322) 411,929
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReERBESEEY
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) /iR (101,897) 187,375
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REAZBEERES
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEw 212,545 15,165
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERRHRECF
RATES CHANGES (18,275) 10,005
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEESRRESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 20(a) 92,373 212,545

The notes on pages 69 to 199 form part of these financial 2E69H ZEF19B 2 AZSHBRE 22—

statements. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 25 A B i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. The Company'’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 3201-09, 32/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 15 September 2017, the English
name of the Company was changed from “BEP
International Holdings Limited” to “New Provenance
Everlasting Holdings Limited” with effect from 15
September 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies (Cap 622) Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company'’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value as
explained in note 2(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income or expenses of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)),
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #Z=ZF

2.

=NE=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro - rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses and estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Plant, machinery and  5%-33%

equipment

Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%

Office equipment 20%-33%

Computer equipment  20%-33%

Motor vehicles 20%-30%

Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements the remaining term

of the lease and the
estimated useful life
of 4 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment losses.
Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired are
stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (continued)

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(1)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Leasehold land and building for own
use

When the Group makes payments for a
property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of
each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to their
relative fair values at the inception of
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Leasehold land and building for own
use (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid land lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(@) Policy applicable from 1 April

2018

The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the financial
assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents and trade and
bills receivables and other
receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair
value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the
present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (that is, the
difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect
of discounting is material:

fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and bills receivables and other
receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period
considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit
risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information
that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes
information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from possible default events
within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(continued)

Loss allowances for trade and
bills receivables are always
measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial
instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HE -_ZT— hFE=A=+—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEESFBEK(E)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEEBEEREERE (&)
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) T TAZEEEE (&)
(continued)
(a) Policy applicable from 1 April (a) R=ZZE—NFWMA

2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable
and supportable, including
historical experience and
forward-looking information
that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # Z—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk (continued)

In particular, the following
information is taken into
account when assessing
whether credit risk has
increased significantly since
initial recognition:

failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HE -_ZT— hFE=A=+—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEESFBEK(E)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEEBEEREERE (&)
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) T TAZEEEE (&)
(continued)
(a) Policy applicable from 1 April (a) R=ZZE—NFWMA
2018 (continued) —HRBER B
(%&)

Significant increases in credit
risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of
the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is
performed on either an
individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(r)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost
(that is, the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have
occurred.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(@) Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

2. FEEHHEE(#)

(@i FEBEEREERME (H)

(i) EHBTRAZIEEER (&)

(a)

88 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥R E 181K AR A 3

R=ZZE—NFWMA
—HEEAZIE
(#)
MBI A Z st B ERE
(#)
SHMEERFEREZ
BEEEAT A ER
ELS

B A EHRERL
75 IR B

BEENTR HIW
R Y ARBEEERNE
HAE

fERA T e S WA
ETEMPHER:

g5 KK

B HEBAEET
MEE: X

R BIT AR AT
R - 3505 B IS
ke



2.

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of
an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit
or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an
“incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified
as at FVPL (for example, trade
and bills receivables and
other receivables). Under
the “incurred loss” model,
an impairment loss was
recognised only when there
was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment included:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
and

significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018 (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For trade and bills receivables
and other receivables and
other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, impairment
loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the
present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment was
made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and had not
been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on
historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEESFBEK(E)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEFEREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) M TAZIEEERE (&)
(continued)
(b) Policy applicable prior to 1 April (b) RZZE—N\FWNA
2018 (continued) —BAERZBUER
(&)
If in a subsequent period the MR EZ B BIE
amount of an impairment loss EBESERD B
decreased and the decrease 8 A B2 A RUORL (B B 18
could be linked objectively to B E EHEES
an event occurring after the . AIEREBEEREE
impairment loss was recognised, B S 18 o B R A
the impairment loss was EBENMSEREER
reversed through profit or loss. HEERAERNBTFE
A reversal of an impairment [E1ER B R EE
loss was only recognised to BEATREEEZ
the extent that it did not EIEER

result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018 (continued)

When the recovery of a trade
and bills receivables and other
receivables or other financial
assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated
impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying
amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in
the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written
off directly were recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- prepaid land lease payments;

- other intangible asset;

- goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in
the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of
the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent
of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

2.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEESFBEK(E)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEFEREERE (&)
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets (ii) I EERE (&)
(continued)
- Recognition of impairment - SRR B B 18

losses
An impairment loss is EEEIMBERESE
recognised in profit or loss FENZEEER
whenever the carrying amount ME AT E & FE R
of an asset, or the cash- BIIFME 23 T SRR B
generating unit to which it B-REeE4LBM
belongs, exceeds its recoverable ERRAREEEAL
amount. Impairment losses R—Ig— AR E
recognised in respect of cash- F B EEREE
generating units are allocated R R AR IR
first to reduce the carrying ZIANZA BN 2 B
amount of any goodwill fth & 2= AR E E HURL
allocated to the cash-generating EE B AR E A AR
unit (or group of units) and ZEEREREERQ
then, to reduce the carrying BRI S R AR (4R
amount of the other assets in AEr2)HEREE
the unit (or group of units) on (WAREESE) °

a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the term of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(4)

(k)

()]

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration,
the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 2(t)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECLs) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(i)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(o) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options
will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payments
(continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in
the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium
account or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

2.

TESHEE (H)

(p)

Frg®i (%)
BETERZBISMERS  FAERT
MEBERABEELEHRAEEE (M
KGR A EEBUS RPN <
ZREER THRERR) BT AR
R DAFERA AR IEERM
EEZBREBIAE EZ R KERD
BN BREEHRARRTE R IEE
REOZEy  EHEEZREHF—
% E B A R — R SR A%t B8 A -
WA FTHRERIEZEREY
a2 [ — HA 8 A 38 O] ok AE R AE
MEEEELEZREEBETEDN
BAZHEARED RFEREE
RREREEZRR T BIFERARRE
RZBRBEERERRAES ZELT
BIAEERRA LAERZ EE -
zZEZRAR-—HREEBRR—
FERRTA B AU WIR B ER B E
B e ER 2 BMAEE T
HEA-

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognsied is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZ_%

2.

=NE=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and

liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more than
12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (that is, the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

In the comparative period, revenue
from sales of goods was recognised
when the goods were delivered to the
customers which was taken to be the
point in time when the customer had
accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

(i) Sale of utilities
Revenue is recognised when utilities are
generated and transmitted.

(iif) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (that
is, gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over
the Group;
(b) has significant influence over

the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

2.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Related parties (continued)
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)
(i) (continued)

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(h) The entity or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # Z—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign currency
transactions
and advance

consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 April 2018 in accordance with
the transition requirements. There is no significant
impact on the Group’s financial position upon initial
application at 1 April 2018. Comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes

to previous accounting policies and the transition

approach are set out below:

a)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL). These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies
and measures financial assets and recognises
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see
respective accounting policy notes in notes 2(i)

(i), (k) and (n).

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities (including
financial guarantee contracts) at 1 April
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

b)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with
a financial asset and therefore recognises

ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss’
accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
bills receivables and other receivables).

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see note

2(i)(i).

The application of HKFRS 9, has not resulted in
material additional loss allowance against the
Group's retained profits at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZ_%

—NE=A=+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERAFITIREKLEBIEBUBERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2R (48)

STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

c) Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:
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— Information relating to comparative

periods has not been restated.
Accordingly, the information presented
for 2018 continues to be reported
under HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current period.

The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is
held has been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that existed
at 1 April 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group).

If, at the date of initial application, the
assessment of whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would have involved
undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL
has been recognised for that financial
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for
construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

There is no significant impact on the Group’s financial
position upon initial application at 1 April 2018.
Comparative information continues to be reported
under HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has
applied the new requirements only to contracts that
were not completed before 1 April 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:

a) Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of
services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods had passed
to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

a)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in
which control of the promised good or service
is regarded as being transferred over time:

A. When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

B. When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced;

C. When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is considered
in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # Z—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

b)

c)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance of revenue recognition
or significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied such a
policy when payments were significantly
deferred, which was not common in the Group's
arrangements with its customers. The Group did
not apply such a policy when payments were
received in advance.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right
to consideration. If the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
for the promised goods and services in
the contract, then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already
due, before the Group recognises the related
revenue. For a single contract with the
customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int
22 does not have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the Group.

3.

BRI REBITBEBMBRS
B (&)

i St

7R (BBRMBBERREEE) —RES
2R RBNRE

wREREE [XHAMRMHES §H
EERERERRE BRI N 25N
BNREXZMELZAHEE RAxHAK
A (HERED) R ZER-

ZaBRE X5 AH] RERERARAXMN
FUBMBNREMEEZ FEEEEER
BEZH - WEREMEARAMIFEZENK
HUGK - BREIRZ D ABESEMNRIMK
RZXHAH - FAHBE (BREMBERER
BZE®) REFRVHAEEG KM
AEPBEEEYBELTAEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WaERISE®RE
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wz 77 #7
Disaggregation of revenue from REEEmOHKREETR, A
contracts with customers by major Wz mT
products is as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
(Note)
(K7t)
Revenue from contracts FE R B BB 5 55 2R
with customers within FISHEEAN 2
the scope of HKFRS 15 BEE KW
Sourcing and sale of FEREEBRED X
metal minerals and HEIERE
related industrial
materials 1,023,695 2,114,606
Production and sale of SEMEFEIXRAE®
industrial products 89,773 111,338
Production and sale of SEREEANRAER
utilities 182,567 166,932
1,296,035 2,392,876

Note: The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method. Under this method,
the comparative information is
not restated and was prepared in
accordance with HKAS 18 (see note
3).

Revenue from the above enterprises
are recognised at point in time.
Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers by geographic
markets is disclosed in note 4(b).

et AEBECRRBRIATFE
EN T EABSITBER
E B E 1557  RIR X
A R ERTES
P - BEERBEEB ST
A BI85 /R & (R KT
F£3) °

KA B RO WRERER
EMER - R IEH R
B E 2 IR ER K
4(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

All sales contracts with customers
are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these
contracts for the remaining unsatisfied
performance obligations is not
disclosed.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments.

(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials;

(ii) Production and sale of industrial
products;

(iii) Production and sale of utilities; and

(iv) Others

Others segment represents business activities
and operating segments not separately

reported, including provision of logistics
services.

4.

ko EHRE (&)

(@ W= (&)

(i)  EHRFAGHRERE A7

BHIE P & RIMERZ W as

EREFPHERNARH—F
HIAR - IE BT EE
AISE1SSR AT RT - BLER TR
BITZEHNEENDEEZ
FANZIRPEBRT AR

3= o

(b) DEHE

REBIRDRETR KR moH A
BREBERNAK - ZREIRD R
REFEMAAKETRAR (X
BEREAN) NEIERER 2T
—BUAEBEE 25T ER 2

RO

(i) RERHECBEY XAk

TER#:

(ii) GERMETXRER:

(iii) FEREEARER &

(iv) HAh

Hip D BRI REB 2 MO XHE
PREENE  BRIEHYRIRT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
goodwill, other intangible asset, inventories,
trade and bills receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, tax recoverable,
deferred tax assets of each segment. Segment
liabilities include trade and bills payables,
accruals, deposits and other payables, bank
advances for discounted bills, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities of each segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the chief executive
officer is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, depreciation, amortisation
of prepaid land lease payments, finance costs,
income tax credit/(expense) and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to price charged
to external parties for similar orders.

4. WEERTEHRSE (&)

(b)

DERE (&)

KB BEREE

RAEPBERREN DB ZHEDE
B NEBZTIREEIR AT E2%

ERRBEA2HR0 BIEMLZEE
BENAE:

PHREEBREDEZINE KBE

A B LA E I R
HivEEE FH BRE SR
MEE - BNHE e REMEK
R AR EH IR EERAEE °
THEBEEBRSIBZENESR
BEERE EFER R REME
MR |RITHRRERR  BAHR
BRRERIRAE -

W kA2 EZENBRE
HERBMZEDRMEL 2
FERZEDBREEEE2 T ESE
HMELZRAX DEEFA2HD
e

EBNBENARZAETARE
DI EMRIEE R D R -

BERSEBRIBEN 2D BEEHR
SN TR EIRENEERIZD
REREEYNE FE ANLTHE
BRI AN EHE
%2/ (AX) RAREFRBDREE
ZABRER D BEREHEED2ER
ASNRE P RUET B Z BIEE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WHERDERE (EF)

(continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERE (F)
Segment results, assets and liabilities SR EERBE (E)
(continued)
The accounting policies of the operating KDz TR B 2 2
segments are the same as the Group’s REE S HEMER -

accounting policies described in note 2.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable BE_Z-NWEFER=ZZT—NF=A
segments as provided to the Group's chief =+ —BLEFE RETAEET
executive officer for the purposes of resources BABZIEEIRD B R h D ERR
allocation and assessment of segment ZAREEA 2WmHE 2 BEREY
performance for the years ended 31 March T e

2019 and 2018 are set out below:

2019
—E-hF
Sourcing
and sale of
metal

minerals  Production
andrelated andsale of Production

industrial industrial  and sale of
materials products utilities Others Total
R
R#E £E
EREY R#E £E
&l I%A8 RHE
TR Em ARER Hit Foh

HK$’000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FET

Reportable segment REMAEFPZAZH

revenue from DEEWE

external customers 1,023,695 89,773 182,567 - 1,296,035
Reportable segment profit 7] 2 {7 48 )& 7 48,749 23,034 16,795 - 88,578
Depreciation for property, 1% * &5 & & &

plant and equipment ZIE - (8,413) (17,943) (2) (26,358)
Amortisation of prepaid ~ TAft +iFHE

land lease payments HIEHE - (72) - - (72)
Finance costs MEKA (44,632) - - - (44,632)
Income tax FiEBEe/ (FX)

credit/(expense) 258 (4,420) (5,513) (75) (9,750)
Reportable segment assets 7] 258 E & 520,571 145,809 271,977 1,470 939,827
Additions to non-current  F R E FER B

segment assets PEBE

during the year - 8,361 9,372 - 17,733
Reportable segment EBNEAR

liabilities (431,118) (13,005) (36,269) (3,906) (484,298)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WaRISERSE (&)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZSEHRE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities SR EERBE (E)
(continued)
2018
—T-)\F
Sourcing
and sale
of metal
minerals  Production
and related and sale of  Production
industrial industrial  and sale of
materials products utilities Others Total
73
RIHE
SEEY HE HE
K AR KHE RHE
TERE IX¥REM NAEmM ot Bt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET FET
Reportable segment REIREFZAZR
revenue from DN
external customers 2,114,606 111,338 166,932 - 2,392,876
Reportable segment profit 7] 2 ¥ 9 484 %l 258,183 20,584 13,219 - 291,986
Depreciation for property, 1% * B5 K% &
plant and equipment ZHE - (9,235) (22,344) )] (31,581)
Amortisation of prepaid Tt LIt E
land lease payments Bt £ - (73) - - (73)
Finance costs RMERA (22,709) - - = (22,709)
Income tax expense FfEBiA % (45,949) (4,063) (2,889) - (52,901)
Reportable segment assets 7] £ 5 48 & & 2,868,257 135,001 224,523 1,260 3,229,041
Additions to non-current  FRARE FERE
segment assets NEEE
during the year - 3,763 2,325 - 6,088
Reportable segment AZRHFERE
liabilities (2,649,312) (26,881) (87,823) (4,553) (2,768,569)

There are no inter-segment sales during the

years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

BE_Z—hhFr-_ZT—)\F=A
—t+—HBIEFE - TESBMES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZ_%

4.

=NE=H=

T—HALEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, s R
(continued)

DEHmE (&)

Segment reporting (continued) (b) pal | (%)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, Al 2 1) ’\*ELI& mA - EBE-AfE
profit, assets, liabilities and other items: REMIER 288k :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
(reclassified)
(EEHHHE)
Revenue W 22
Total reportable segment revenue 7] 2 ¥ 5 A Ui o5 4258 1,296,035 2,392,876
Elimination of inter-segment H3H o fE
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue iRE W 1,296,035 2,392,876
Profit Y Al
Total reportable segment profit REAEEINAEE
derived from the Group’s external 2 A] 2 ¥z 7 £ )@ | 42 58
customers 88,578 291,986
Other net (loss)/income HAh (F518) A FE (67,885) 78,025
Depreciation of reportable segment 7 &t & 5 %8 F BF R 5H A
not included in measurement of ZA2WMOEIE
segment profit (2) (2)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 1 ith FH & 7 78 % £
payments (72) (73)
Finance costs A& K AR (44,632) (22,709)
Unallocated head office and ROFRBMEE &
corporate expenses TEREZ
- Depreciation for property, — ¥ BERZETE
plant and equipment (1,454) (1,050)
- Staff costs (including directors’ —B IR
emoluments) (BEESZHM) (20,438) (39,256)
- Others —HAb (15,017) (20,044)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before mAEBRER (BE) 55
taxation (60,922) 286,877
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # Z—

(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued) (b)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit, assets, liabilities and other items:

A B 785 i B
—hEZA=S+-BLEE

l‘l&ﬁﬁ&/-\*ﬁiﬁ = (nlﬂ)

o EH|E (&)
AEHmo Bk BN BE BE
REMER 28R (&)

(continued)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
(reclassified)
(BEFHE)
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets AEHnBEEERS 939,827 3,229,041
Elimination of inter-segment ¥ 45 5 HE [ P SR E
receivable - -
939,827 3,229,041
Unallocated head office and ROMBIERE &
corporate assets TEEE
- Cash and cash equivalents —“BekBEeEED 92,373 212,545
- Others —HAth 6,564 7,977
Consolidated total assets IR EEBE 1,038,764 3,449,563
Liabilities =i
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] £ 8 & FE42%8 484,298 2,768,569
Elimination of inter-segment ¥V 58 9 FAE FE T IR
payable - -
484,298 2,768,569
Unallocated head office and ROBBRREER
corporate liabilities TEEE
- Others —Efh 3,357 6,815
Consolidated total liabilities e AEesE 487,655 2,775,384
Other items Hihig g
Depreciation for property, Y E REETTE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total AI 2/ N BB 26,358 31,581
Unallocated head office and ADEEIHERE R
corporate total ﬁ%%%ﬁ 1,454 1,050
Consolidated total AR 27,812 32,631
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 # % —

=G = JE = = BIESEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. Wak7E#HRE (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZSEHRE (&)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, AEHp kN -l EE- AE

REMIAR 2 HEK: (&)

profit, assets, liabilities and other items:
(continued)

130

2019 2018
—E-h& AN
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
(reclassified)
(EEHHE)
Income tax expense Fﬁ?%f%ﬁfﬁi
Reportable segment total kofasess 9,750 52,901
Unallocated head office and ﬂi’ _%?$JE&
corporate total EBETE - =
Consolidated total RN G 9,750 52,901
Additions to non-current segment  FERREIER B DB EE
assets during the year
Reportable segment total AE2Hmoy e 17,733 6,088
Unallocated head office and ROBBWEE R
corporate total B - 6,933
Consolidated total RE BT 17,733 13,021
Revenue from major products and services FEEmRIREZ Yam

The following is an analysis of the Group's

UTRAKEREEEEM W

revenue from its major products: DA :
2019 2018
—E-hE T —N\F
HKs’000 HKS000
FHET FET

Metal minerals and related industrial & B &%) M #HE T ¥R

materials 1,023,695 2,114,606
Industrial products TXERE® 89,773 111,338
Utilities NAEm 182,567 166,932
1,296,035 2,392,876
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
goodwill, other intangible asset and non-
current rental deposit. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the products were delivered. The
geographical locations of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease payments
and non-current rental deposit is based on
the physical location of the assets under
consideration. In the case of goodwill and other
intangible asset, it is based on the location of
the operation to which they are allocated.

4.

WEkoEHRE (&)

(b)

DEHE (&)

Ml 525
TERHIINOAEERAINAETFZ
Wik R)VAEBEYE BB R&R
#H BT EERE B Hit
EBREAENMIERDES LS IRMIE
MEBEED 2D - BRE Z B ETY
BRANERMZLBEE D - WE  BE
TR AN T S RIE A R 3k
RBES RS BT IR E
EEEECERNEE D -HEE
MEMERLEEmMS  BREBERS
BB CEEBENEE D -

Other Asian countries
Hong Kong
(place of domicile)

PRC except Hong Kong # B ( & & kK o1)

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REIREFE 2K kRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZT-N\F ZEBE-NE —ZT)\F
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
F#ET FET FET FET
E AT MBI X 430,529 = - =
BE (Zfb2h)
- - 4,657 6,803
865,506 2,392,876 213,322 257,305
1,296,035 2,392,876 217,979 264,108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

ko EHRE (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERE (&)
Information about major customers BREFEZER BN
Revenue from customers contributing 10% EREEFEEATEI0%RIIA L2
or more of the total sales of the Group are as PRSI
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
F#ET FET
Customer A (note (i)) BPA (M EE6)) 702,795 854,646
Customer B (note (ii) BB (M) 398,942 706,104
Customer C (note (iii) BEC (W) N/A
T A 832,058
Notes: BiEE
i) Revenue from the above customer arose i) BE_Z-—NEFR-ZE-N\F=

from the businesses of production and sale
of industrial products, production and sale
of utilities and sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

ii) Revenue from the above customer arose from
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

iii) Revenue from the above customer arose from
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials did
not contribute 10% or more of the Group’s
total sales for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$832,058,000).

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

iiii)

A=+—BILEE EREFZ
Wt YR R B TR I
B EERHE ARERMN R
RS ERNREEILR
CETE

BEZT—NEFER=ZZ—N\F=
A=+—BLFE LligF 2
WaThRERBEREESBREY
MABB T X R HER -

HE-_Z-—NALE=A=1+—8
LEFEE FERE 2 k25 T5K
ARERHEESCERY AR
TERBEBTBEASEE
I #10%8 A E (ZF— \F:
832,058,000/ 7T ) °
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

5. OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 5. Hit (B WARE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FETT
(reclassified)
(BEFHE)
Interest income on bank deposits WITFRZFEHA 218 48
Interest income on loan receivable FEWRE R Z F B A 320 304

Total interest income on financial assets R AFTEZ S/

measured at amortised cost BEZMBWAHLE 538 352
Sundry income A 61 214
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain BN (F18) W58 (69,329) 142,926
Fair value gain/(loss) on MEEMIAZARE

derivative financial instruments Wzt (E518)

- forward foreign exchange contracts —RHIINES R 845 (65,467)

(67,885) 78,025
6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRBLAT(BE/) EF

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging BRELAT (B518) CEF BB THSE :

the followings:

(a)  Finance costs (a) ®BEREX
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Bills discount charges ZRAEEA 44,632 22,709

Total interest expense on financial W IEFBEFIZ A RE
liabilities not at fair value through ~ JIBEZ & @& &
profit or loss 2R BT ERE 44,632 22,709
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6.

(continued)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging

(b)

(c)

EMENTS

BRBiAT (B518)8R (&)

BRBa (B8R TR ME MR TSR

the followings: (continued) (%)
Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EBINK(BEESHMH)
emoluments)
2019 2018
—g-nE  —F )&
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ & « T & I H b & F 48,273 63,477
Contributions to defined TE BB RUR IRET 81 2 3R
contribution retirement plans 7,859 5,726
56,132 69,203
Other items (c) HfhE |
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z-N\F
HKs’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories * TR AR 1,196,735 2,089,699
Auditors’ remuneration % E0RD B & 1,200 1,133
Amortisation of prepaid land TE T 4 16 & I8 8
lease payments 72 73
Depreciation for property, M BEREEITE
plant and equipment 27,812 32,631
Operating lease charges: KEHEER:
minimum lease payments HRAEK 16,860 16,409
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BE K&
plant and equipment Z BB - 15
Written off of property, M B KR
plant and equipment 1,918 2,798
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6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6.

(continued)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging

the followings: (continued)

(c)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

Other items (continued)

(%)

(c)

# Cost of inventories, being the carrying
amount of inventories sold, included
HK$69,907,000 (2018: HK$69,277,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation and

operating lease charges for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018 which amounts
were also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately in notes 6(b)
and 6(c) for each of these types of expenses.

Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a)

profit or loss represents:

%A%%ﬁimﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #EZ—_Z—NWFE=A=1+—HIFE

BRBiAT (B518),8F (4)

BRBa (BR) SR E MR TSR

Eﬂﬂlﬁﬁ (%)

GFEXRA(BEEFREZERER
B)BEEE-Z—LEFER=F
—N\E=ZA=+—BLEEEZ
EHEINA ERKERE
£ 169,907,000/ 7C (= Z — /\
F 169,277,000 7T ) * B @R IE
INE B & X LR RIET A D BIR K
7T6(b) R 6(c)FT I & 2 & A M58
I:Flo

REBBERZAEH

REBBRZAEBIE:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\EFE
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Current tax BN ERE 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note (i) ~ —&BFEH (HTaL0)) 73 45,949
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —H BB ZEFTSH
(note (ii) (TREMEHI)
(B1aLai) 9,933 6,952
10,006 52,901
Over-provision in respect of BT ERER A
prior years
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNER (258) =
Deferred tax IRAET I8
- Origination and reversal of —ERERZELERER
temporary differences (H17t24(b)())
(note 24(b)(i)) 2 =
Total #Et 9,750 52,901
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HZEBBRZEH (E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) GEBRERZAEHE: (&)

profit or loss represents: (continued)

Notes: Kiat -

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided (i)
as the Group has no assessable profits for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax for
2018 is calculated at 16.5% of estimated
assessable profits for the year.

(ii) PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at (ii)
25% (2018: 25%).

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or
10% and withheld by PRC entities.

(iii) The Group is not subject to any taxation (iii)
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa,
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HREBmRZMEH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEZIHER (BR) SRFRE
accounting (loss)/profit at the applicable tax ABRITERBEBNHE:
rates:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELRT (E518) A (60,922) 286,877
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before B &t AT (E518) & H 2
taxation, calculated at the BEVIE  RBRAM
domestic income tax rate of 16.5%  FT{5 % £16.5%:1 &
(2018: 16.5%) —E—)\F:16.5%) (10,052) 47,335
Tax effect of non-deductible PRI E 2 MG 2
expenses 13,783 3,343
Tax effect of non-taxable income TEFRBBA 2R 28 (697) (565)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~ E b 18 5] /A M & AT E £
from other tax jurisdictions MERER T2 3,037 2,322
Tax effect of utilisation of unused ~ BIFRBAEFERERZ
tax losses not recognised in REBBIEEEZ
prior years MG E - (68)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZAREARIEEE
not recognised 2R 3,185 832
Over-provision in respect of BEFERBERE
prior years (258) -
Tax reduction HIBER - (30)
Others HA 752 (268)
Actual tax expense ERBIES H 9,750 52,901
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NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

CON

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

8. EEME

ARBEERAGIIFEI3MNMEGER AR (K
BEENDEM)ROE2MTURENE

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EMemT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2019
—E-hF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2H RKER
Be REWANZ MERAL RTEMEX @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chief Executive) N (TTE#) - 2,184 167 18 2,369
Mr. Li Zhendong FRELE
(appointed on 31 July 2018) (R=E-N\E
tRA=+—REZE) - 1,105 63 6 1,174
Mr. Hu Haifeng ikl St
(resigned on 31 July 2018) (R=E-N\%F
tA=+—HEE) - 2,105 1,840 - 3,945
Non-executive director FHiTES
Mr. Zheng Gang B % E
(appointed on 28 May 2018) (R=E-—N\#&E
AAZTN\BREZ) 538 - - - 538
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George BREZEE 594 - - - 594
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEBRLE 594 - - - 594
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David REEEL 667 - - - 667
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTEL
(appointed on 5 June 2018) (R=F—-N\F
NARREZRME) 420 - - - 420
2,813 5,394 2,070 24 10,301
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8. EZEE < (&)
2018
—E-\%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 20 BRIREF
we REDHZE ML RarEMER H@ar
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hu Haifeng (Chief Executive) SR LE (TTH#EE)
(appointed on 15 May 2017) (RZZE—+F
TRATHBEZA) - 4,850 700 - 5,550
Mr. Sin Lik Man HENXEE
(appointed on 2 March 2018) (R=ZE—N\#&E
=“AZHEZMA) - 112 44 2 158
Mr. Zhong Guoxing BEELE
(appointed on 15 May 2017 and (R=B—+45
resigned on 2 March 2018) TAtRREZAR
RZT—-N\F
ZAZHEI) - 9,665 3,885 = 13,550
Mr. Zhang Honghai RATIE &
(resigned on 30 June 2017) (R=ZE—+tF
NA=ZTHER) - 930 - 46 976
Mr. Wang Zhonghe FfsEs
(resigned on 30 November 2017) (RZT—t&F
+—A=1AEfF) = 2,840 = 120 2,960
Mr. Cheung Ming REA S &
(resigned on 15 May 2017) (R=B—+tF
AT RAEL) - 1,157 - 3 1,160
Mr. Ren Haisheng EEAEE
(resigned on 3 August 2017) (R=ZE—+£&
NAZREHE) = 639 = 7 646
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George REZLE 460 - - - 460
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick FEBREE 460 - - - 460
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David RERELE 515 = = = 515
1,435 20,193 4,629 178 26,435

No director of the Company has waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group for the years ended

31 March 2019 and 2018.

RBE_T-NFrR_FT-N\F=A=t—

HIEFE AR A

Z B E R R AT ) A

& MAKERERERNEEREMNE
M EARENAREBHMALREH

i 22 -

Annual Report 2018/19 4 %f 2018/19

139



140
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

o. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2018: three) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in notes 8 and 28. The
aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining three
(2018: two) individual are as follows:

9.

REFMAL

AEEREESFHALTR ME(ZF
—NF:=ZR)ABEARAREST HBMSER
Mer8 28T - Ep =R (ZT—\F: W
ZIEaFMAT M EEENT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe ERREWMH R 4,166 2,149
Discretionary bonuses 1B EAT 357 738
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  iE K42 7 5t 2 4t 5% 105 144
4,628 3,031

The emoluments of the three (2018: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

—EBREWAL(ZE—NF - WMA)Z
e BN THIAER

bands:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T &
1,500,000 7T 1 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,008 7T &=
2,000,000/ 7T 2 1

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

10. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

10.

RBE_Z-NFR_E-—N\F=A=+—
AR AKEYEAEASSHMAL
X RENERAME  FREFMALEKE
HINARE B 2 EE) kBB (B

iz 2

EFETRARERE-T-NAFR=-F
—NFZA=+-BUEEEZEARS -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

a)

b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the

1. ER(FE) &F

a) BREX (FBER) &F
FRER (BR) BIDREEAA
AR ARIEFR (BR),Saflk
A A E 1T H BRI T 19 BT

weighted average number of ordinary shares in Ho
issue during the year.
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
(Loss)/earnings (B]|) B
(Loss)/profit for the year AAGHEAEAEEENR
attributable to owners of (E8) & F
the Company (HKS000) (FX¥T) (70,350) 233,638
Number of shares KRHEE
Weighted average number of BEETEER
ordinary shares in issue hniE 5 2 21,084,072,140 21,084,072,140
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER (E18) &
(HK cent per share) (EAEEN ) (0.334) 1.108

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the same as
the basic (loss)/earnings per share as there is no
potential ordinary shares outstanding during
the years.

b) BREE (FB) EF
HRFRATEEELBRE AT
F WHE-_E-—HLER_ZT—N\
FZA=Z1+—RBULFEzSRES
(B518) /BRESREX (BE)
BFAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

12.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

12.

BERAKEF

AEBEREBERBBRREERGGDEERA
REREEMHIE 2EBRHEREES
iR R EBBERBESERIERES
HE ([RE2EE)) - RESFE R A
BB EEAEENERBETRNKEE -
RBRESHE BRIMERHARERN
M 5% e AHTEELHR - B RE
BEXAZHFBELRA®E A1,5008 7T H
& e 8RR 5812 R AN R o

AEEN2E-BEFRERERERRAK
B E - AEE 2 hEHERRIERE S
m P BT S8 BRE R KRN S
ZHKB - ZEMBARBRTIERAZIEE
B RERRENE SR ERE R
BAE AEBERRABNE ZE—BE
EEHEE K-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERR®E
Plant,
machinery Furniture Construction
and and Office Computer Motor  Leasehold in
equipment fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
BE #a B HAE HENE
REfE R&E B3 ElRRE RE % EEIR &it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
&1 AT AT AT A7 AT AT AT
Cost RA&
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+5MF-A 256475 358 7839 621 1,299 367 11,129 278,088
Additions wE 2583 634 210 756 699 3359 3464 11,705
Written off fii A (4014) (64) (148) (443) = (366) = (5035)
Disposal HE - - - - (395) - - (395)
Effect of foreign currency ERER/PE
exchange differences 26,797 31 811 8 95 - 1,351 29,093
At31March2018and 1 April 2018 R=E—/\E=F=+-H
R=Z-\¥mA-A 281,841 959 8,712 942 1,698 3,360 15,944 313,456
Additions RE 5,002 - - - - - 12,731 17,733
Written off ik (4102) - (14) - - - - (4116)
Transfer from CIP ERIREA 16,780 - 1,237 - - 315 (18:332) -
Disposal HE (18,640) - - - - - - (18,640)
Effect of foreign currency EXzEs7E
exchange differences (16,133) (20) (523) (5) (62) 1 (1,007) (17,749)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NF=A=+-H 264,748 939 9,412 937 1,636 3,676 9,336 290,684
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE
impairment
At 1 April 2017 RZZ-+£MA-A 18,239 336 898 345 1,140 264 - 2120
Charge for the year FRER 29218 100 23% 201 182 536 - 32,631
Written off s (1,497) (48) (109) (274) - (309) - (2.237)
Disposal HE - - - - (296) = = (296)
Effect of foreign currency ERER/YE
exchange differences 3,388 29 214 8 95 - - 3,734
At31March 2018and 1 April 2018 R=F—\F=F=+-H
R=Z-\¥MA-H 49,348 417 3,397 280 1,121 491 - 55,054
Charge for the year EERE 23,716 158 2,675 206 210 847 - 27,812
Written off s (2,184) - (14) - - - - (2:198)
Effect of foreign currency EiEE/7E
exchange differences (2,964) (20) (198) (5) (62) - - (3,249)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+-H 67916 555 5,860 481 1,269 1,338 - 77,419
Carrying amounts BHE
At 31 March 2019 R=F-7§=R=1-H 196,832 384 3,552 456 367 2,338 9,336 213,265
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\$=f=+-H 22493 542 5315 662 577 2,869 15,944 258,402
Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group M RBEZZ-—NAEF=A=1+—BIF

adjusted the cost of certain items of plant, machinery
and equipment due to the over-estimated for the cost

of construction which was completed in prior years.

Accordingly, the equivalent amount of other payable

was reversed by the Group.

B AEEEBEMGS TREEFER
TRZEEZRAMARE TG #es

BNHRAZRAESHE -

R RA - B - ANERE B E T HAh
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. ENLT#HBAERE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at beginning of the year A& ¥ Z lREE 3,770 3,481
Amortisation for the year EINCSEEE- Fis (72) (73)
Effect of foreign currency EREREZZE
exchange differences (233) 362
Carrying amount at end of the year RERZERHEE 3,465 3,770
Current portion mENEB D (72) (77)
Non-current portion JERENE 3,393 3,693
Note: Biat -
The Group’s leasehold land is held under medium-term leases REEMRE L0 TR B BEERF B LA N H
and is situated in mainland China. A3 o
15. GOODWILL 15. &8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\&E
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost 2%
At beginning and at end of the year REIRER 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss 2R ESER
At beginning and at end of the year RETRER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount FREE - =
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

fo 1 B 75 A B i
=G = B == Bl S E

GOODWILL (continued) 15. BE (&)
Others segment: Hih %8
For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had HBEARME  BEIEIEIBEeEL
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged B (HEZEREERTPBEESMRES -
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing, PIEEE EHKEMBERE) ?ﬁﬁ)\ﬁm
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong DHEIBET -EERERE BBEEYRER
and PRC, and included under others segment. The BRAR ([BREEmR]) RERBA 7
management considered Shing Kee International B skEyRE ORI ERA (fﬂ%ua/ﬁ
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL") together with its Bel) (#2r8 F%pa![ﬁ%#@m%lj) B2l
subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics & Warehousing EEZREELEN  TARBELHNE
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation of f&C /& = A 15 IR A
me ORY) BRAF]) (“Sealand”) (collectively the
“SKIL Group”) is the CGU for allocation of goodwill as
synergies are derived in such arrangement.
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. HMtEFLEE
Customer
relationship
EFBR
HKS000
TET
Cost A
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, RZE—+tFMA—8H-
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 —Z—N\F=A=+—8"
—ET-NFOA-HE
—hE=A=+—8 4,202
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B RRE
impairment
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, RZZE—+tFWMA—R
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 —E-N\F=ZA=+—8"
—T-NFEOA—-HK
—NWE=A=+—H 4,202
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NAF=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-—N\F=HA=+—H -
Annual Report 2018/19 4 %f 2018/19
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17.

18.

CON

INVENTORIES 78
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Merchandise [l - 24,859
Raw materials B 172 543
Finished goods 2IpK an 48,706 24,093
48,878 49,495
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES EBWESREREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables EUE Z A 122,729 97,035
Bills receivables FEWEE 416,115 2,277,019
Less: Loss allowance B B IR B (73) (73)
538,771 2,373,981

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected to be

recovered within one year.
Notes:

(@) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice

ERKREZFARERERB AN —F

A mE o
Wit :

(a) BRER D AT

ATARBERRZEREHAEER
252 BUKE 5508 IR ERERE)

date or shipment date and net of loss allowance is as ZERER DT
follows:

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKs'000
FAET FET
0 - 60 days 0Z60H 79,551 94,551
61 - 120 days 61£2120H 42,288 1,540
121 - 180 days 121E2180K - -
181 - 360 days 181%360H - 597
Over 360 days #3H360H 817 274
122,656 96,962
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. BWESZNREARERE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) e (&)
(@) Ageing analysis (continued) (@) BREC DT (48)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing INTARRERARZREEHHES 2.
analysis of bills receivables based on the shipment WERE (MREBRERE) ZRERD

date and net of loss allowance is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0£60H - 234,552
61 - 120 days 6121204 - 477,388
121 - 180 days 121£180H - 434,396
181 - 360 days 181%360H 405,970 973,632
Over 360 days (remark) BiB360H (L) 10,145 157,051
416,115 2,277,019
Trade and bills receivables are usually due within BRESRERZEBREEANERH
360 days (2018: 360 days) from the date of billing, HA- %5 A Sk B B B BB ET3608 (=
shipment date or bills issue date. Further details on T—)\F :360H ) A%t - BARKEE
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from EBRARERE S HRIERERS| Bz
trade and bills receivables are set out in note 27(a). BEERRZE— P HBRARMT27@)
Remark: it
The amount of bills receivables with ageing over 360 BREQHBiB360 A M E IR IR ¢ F 25 21 H
days represented bills with 360 days maturity day and HR360AMER NEERHE—ZW
were received by the banks within one to two months BARBRITHRR ZERBERFEA
after the shipment date. These bills were fully settled BEEHES-

after the year end.
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18.

anl

#

N O U

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Transferred receivables

During the year, the Group discounted bills
receivables to banks for cash proceeds. If the bills
receivables are not paid at maturity, the banks have
the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled
balance. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the receivables and has recognised the
cash received on the discounting as secured bank
advances. The Group considers the held to collect
business model to remain appropriate for these
receivables and hence continues measuring them at
amortised cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the bills receivables that have been
discounted but have not been derecognised
amounted to HK$416,115,000 (2018: HK$879,867,000)
and the carrying amount of the associated liability is
HK$412,557,000 (2018: HK$851,210,000).

18.

BREZREARERE (&)

Hiat: (48)

(b)

EEEE TR

NAFE  AERESENR S FIBKE
WRBRNRITREE W B R B REER
FMEN RITARERAEE N
REE AR o AN SR B R A A
I & BRI 2 EARRRR R E R - A
BRERBEUGRZ 2HREERGRR
ZEWEBR S ER BB ERMRTRK
AEERBFEERENEBEAHNZ
SERUFEMEDEEE HtEER
BHRAHEETHE

REER AR ERBUSER 2 U
=4 7 BRI {H 5416,115,0008 7T (=&
— J\4F : 879,867,0007% 7T ) RiEHEEE 2
BRI {8 4412,557,000/8 7T ( =T — \4F :
851,210,000/ 7T ) °
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  19. FENRIE - -Re Rk HthEWKIE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Amount due from a non-controlling interest & U 3F 2 A% 45 25 71 I8
(note (a)) (Hiit (@) 6,563 6,242
Other receivables H b fE W RUIE 2,126 137
Less: Loss allowance L BT E R
(notes (a) and (b)) (Htet(@) b)) (5,950) (5,950)
2,739 429
Financial assets mandatorily measured BHMEBAANE
at FVPL SAABRSREE
- derivative financial instruments —ftTEemIT A
- forward foreign exchange contracts —RHIHME S 4
(note 27(d)) (Ktsz27(d)) 595 -
Trade deposits paid (note (e)) ENB &S (FitE) 110,061 530,308
Other deposits and prepayments H iz & RIERFHIE 22,542 10,781
Other tax prepayments (note (d)) HMBEHIE (HaE ) 5,659 9,341
141,596 550,859
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHREMNSTAE:
Current assets mEBEE 140,275 548,846
Non-current assets (note (c)) ERBEE (Hit()) 1,321 2,013
141,596 550,859
Notes: Haz -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (@) HEDAZHARBEBEMA L ZFAB

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one of
which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Group. It was interest-bearing at 5.01% per annum

and was due on 30 September 2017.

At 31 March 2019, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance of HK$5,938,000 (2018:

HK$5,938,000) is provided.

RAFZ M REEER Bh—FAA
SEFE2EMBRABLERYR-
BRI IR F ) E5.01%:1 8 RARZT
—tFAA=TRERK

R-ZE—AE=A=+—HB &#HC8
HA 3 51 2 %k {8 B 55,938,0008 7T (=
— )\ 15,938,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

19.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19.
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(%)

RANFIE RERHMBERKE

Kt - (#8)

Impairment of other receivables (b) A fE R IE 2 RUE
Impairment losses in respect of other receivables 8 B8 E A P R IR 2 BB RS 18 T 156 PR
are recorded using an allowance account unless the EREER BRIEAEEFEAWEFEK
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is 187 AT e MR RVERIR - FELLIER T
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written BEGESHEEMEEMEKRZE (R
off against other receivables directly (see note 2(i)). T EE20) ) °
Movements in the loss allowance BREEZE
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —ZE-N\F
Note HK$’000 HKS000
i3 FET FET
At beginning of the year REH 5,950 5,950
Impairment allowance B R B BB
recognised (i) - -
At end of the year RER (i) 5,950 5,950
Note: Baz -
(i) At 31 March 2019, other receivables of (i) RZZE—-—NAF=A=+—H"
the Group including amount due from R E A UK IR (BRI
a non-controlling interest amounting to FE 428 iR 4 25 7078 ) 5,950,000 7T
HK$5,950,000 (2018: HK$5,950,000) were (ZZF— )\ : 5,950,000 7T ) &
individually determined to be impaired. ERlEERBRE - EREL
The individually impaired receivables were FEUGRIE /AR5 iR B 8 B —
outstanding for over 1 year at the end of the FLA L RFEWE S B B2 2
reporting period and were due from a non- FEAEARAE 2R Y FRIE ©
controlling interest with financial difficulties.
Except for rental deposits of HK$1,321,000 (2018: (©) BRIEHER—ERKE YES KRS

HK$2,013,000) which are expected to be recovered
after more than one year, all other receivables are

expected to be recovered within one year and trade
deposits paid and other deposits and prepayments

are expected to be recovered or recognised as

expenses within one year.

1,321,000/ 7C ( =Z — A\ : 2,013,000/
TC) 29N+ B E i FE U SR I TE HA AT R
—FRKE MEMFEZERE AR
e KRB FRIERRBER —FRKE sk
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19.

20.

AL STATEMENTS
ot S 2 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  19. FAMNRE - R R HMtEWRIE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (#&)

Notes: (continued) Bt - (#8)

(d) The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid (d) HihFEM BB E AT ER K]
value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset REREETREE 2B ARRKRE
the value-added tax payable arising from the future ETHEMEE ZEMIEER -
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

(e) At 31 March 2019, trade deposits of HK$110,061,000 (e) RZZE—AFE=A=+—H X£EE
(2018: HK$530,308,000) were paid by the Group to N ERE E 512 £110,061,0007 7T (=
the suppliers for purchase of merchandise and raw T — J\4 : 530,308,000 7T) ' AFEE &
materials which will be recognised as purchases MERME BEeBEERAEASER
after the year end date upon the delivery of the NEYMREMESESEBRERRE
merchandise and raw materials to the Group. fEHE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND 200 RERREEEY REMRE

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION REER

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) BeRBESEEY

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 92,373 212,545
Cash and cash equivalents in the 43 & B IEAR LK
consolidated statement of financial 4ARELRER 2
position and the consolidated ReERBREZED
statement of cash flows 92,373 212,545
Note: HiiF -

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

RITHES R ARTFERF KR ZF 7
KRB B
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E-NF=ZRA=+—BILEFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 200 RERRESEHY REMERES .
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION nEER (&) %
(continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REITHFELABZHIE
financing activities

Bank

advances

for discounted

bills

RITEEER

ZEBN

HK$’000

FET

(note 23)

(Htit23)

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFMHA—H 414,080

Changes from financing cash flows REIEHR & REEH) 428,600

Exchange adjustments FE 5 R 8,530
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R_-ZE—NF=A=+—HRK

—E-N\FWmA—H 851,210

Changes from financing cash flows RIEE & REEH) (383,424)

Exchange adjustments IE 5 & (55,229)

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NAF=A=+—H 412,557
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21.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #Z_=%

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

=IEEE A== B4 E

BNEZREREE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HKS000

FET FET

Trade payables e E 5518 24,651 121,591
Bills payables (note (b)) e =W (Hiatm)) - 1,123,862
24,651 1,245,453

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

Trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, no bills
payables being secured by the restricted bank
deposits.

Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date
or shipment date is as follows:

wiaz

(a)

(b)

()

RN ESHRARREBRHR —
B

FAE

%

A\ ZZ2-—NEF=RA=+—HRZZ-N
FZA=+—H HEEMENEER
FRBIIRITFRIEEIR

s

BRER D AT

KT ARBERRZERBHLEER
252 BN E SR Z R :

2019 2018
—E-RF —ZT—)\F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

0 - 60 days 0%F60H 16,893 105,523
61 - 120 days 61%2120H 482 9,878
121 - 180 days 121%2180H 896 1,377
181 - 360 days 181£360H 231 696
Over 360 days 838360 H 6,149 4,117
24,651 121,591
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ATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2. BENEZRERERE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) s ()
(c) Ageing analysis (continued) () BRI DT (&)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing AT ARRERARIZEEHHRES 2.
analysis of bills payables based on the shipment date &2 Rk DT :
is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-AEF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAT
0 - 60 days 0E60H - 129,897
61 - 120 days 6121204 - -
121 - 180 days 1212180H - 335,211
181 - 360 days 1812360H - 658,754
- 1,123,862
22. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. EHEA ReRHMEMNKE
PAYABLES
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E—)N\F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Accruals and other payables FE 5T PR K% E th & < 5K IE 27,251 64,247
Trade deposits received BEWE Sike 13,771 549,356
Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at 34 | 1£3% 8 A 70 &
FVPL FFAERzERmARE
— derivative financial instruments —ftTEemIT A
- forward foreign exchange contracts —RHINEE L
(note 27(d)) (Kiat27(d)) 1,793 22,779
42,815 636,382

Note:

All of the accruals and other payables, trade deposits received
and financial liabilities mandatorily measured at FVPL are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one
year or are repayable on demand.

Biat

B ERRAEMENKE BRE SRS KEH
HEBAREFABRRZ EREBEEHEA/RN
—FRBEBERERRBRARIZEREE -
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23.

BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED
BILLS

At 31 March 2019, the bank advances for discounted
bills of HK$412,557,000 (2018: HK$851,210,000) are
secured by certain of the bills receivables (note 18(b))
and repayable within the next financial year with a
repayment on demand clause.

Included in the balances was HK$412,557,000 (2018:
HK$313,134,000) charged with bills discount charges
upon bank advances and no future interest payment
to be made. No balances was bearing interest which
are paid monthly until maturity date as at 31 March
2019 (2018: HK$538,076,000). The interest rates and
bills discount rates ranged from 4.22% to 4.98% (2018:
2.69% to 5.62%) per annum.

23.

R-ZZTE—AE=ZA=+—H RTGHER
= 5 #.5%412,557,00008 70 ( — T — )\ & ¢
851,210,000/ 7T ) JH A E TR R EE AR
B (HsE18(b)) RZER T —EM BFEE
B WABRERERGR-

&8 H412,557,0008 L (= — \F:

313,134,000/ 70 ) IZIRITE R BB AR &

RN AEBAESNREME -RZT—NF

A=+ HYELHEBAIMNFER

ZIEH A (=2 — /\ & : 538,076,000/ T ) °

FIEREBREREGFN F4.22%%54.98%
T \4F 2.69%E5.62% ) °

Annual Report 2018/19 % % 2018/19

155



FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

24. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24, GZEMBRRERZAEBH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) mE MR R T Z BN IER

statement of financial position represents:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year REA] 41,811 17,665
Provision for the year REE R
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEN 73 45,949
- PRCEIT —HEBEMEHR 9,933 6,952
10,006 52,901
Over-provision in respect BEFERERE
of prior years
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBRIER (258) =
(258) =
Income tax paid during the year FRNENFAER
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNER (38,313) (19,136)
- PRCEIT —HEBEMEHR (5,975) (10,605)
(44,288) (29,741)
Effect of foreign currency EBHERE 2R
exchange differences (74) 986
At end of the year RER 7,197 41,811
Representing: Rk
Tax recoverable A] [ Y A 18 (369) (462)
Tax payable FERTER IR 7,566 42,273
At end of the year RER 7,197 41,811
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised
(i) The components of deferred tax

assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

A B 785 i B
—hEZA=S+-BLEE

24, ZEUBRRKRZFEH (HF)

(b) CERIEEHBEERAE
(i) HERA MBI RERZIE

ERBAER S EHHRH
ERNEHMT :

Depreciation  Depreciation

allowances in excess of
in excess related
of related depreciation
Deferred tax arising from: depreciation allowances Total
BELEHERE : MERHE WEERBMER
EBEETE HEEHRE @st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET FEIT
At 1 April 2017, RZBE—+F
31 March 2018 and mA—B-
1 April 2018 —EF-NF
=A=+-~
AR =F—\F
mA—H 66 (49) 17
Charged to profit or loss H1fx B Bz
(note 7(a)) (K1at7(a)) = 2 2
At 31 March 2019 —ET-hF
=A=+—H 66 (47) 19
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii) ERA WIS AR R R BB
statement of financial position:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—-)N\F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RERE BRI R ER
recognised in the FEFRIBEE
consolidated statement of
financial position (47) (49)
Deferred tax liabilities RirE PSRN RER
recognised in the ZELEHEAE
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
19 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

24,

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$28,192,000 (2018: HK$10,760,000)
and HK$49,062,000 (2018: HK$55,350,000)
available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely and with
expiry date of within 5 years, respectively.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2019, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to HK$95,543,000
(2018: HK$80,015,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of HK$4,773,000 (2018: HK$4,001,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

24,

ma

(c)

(d)

MBRRKRZAEHR (F)

AERELEHBBEE
R-_ZE—AFEF=ZA=+—H 'K
& B K &) 3 B 1E /B 1828,192,000%8
7T (=—Z— /A% 10,760,000/ 7T )
149,062,000 7L (= Z — )\ F :
55,350,000/ 7T ) A] A LA 85 2K 20
- WHp A ERAEERNA
F R E HB o B 7 AR B TEURI R 2R 5 A
KRB RHBIEEBEREREL
HIB&EE -

AERZELEHEEE

R IE A B 1 FEFTS B 0% AR BT
BRARR-_ZEZENF—A—HE
FTBRER 2 35 F Bk 2 B BB BN TE
Mo

R_ZE—hF=A=+—8 8K
BRAIRD K ENAE 2 ERERE
#$95,543,0008 7T (ZF — \F :
80,015,000 7T ) ° A AN 1 A] &
FlZEMRBA AT 2 REBEK  BR
BZERBENTRATERAR
1 2R 1E I 5 Ik - [ M 3 % 5t 95 IR 7%
e N 2 FE S B IE B RE T B IR
£ 154,773,000 T (ZF — \F :
4,001,000/ 7T ) °
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25.

(a)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the

Group's consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Details of the changes in the Company’s

individual components of equity between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out

B AR K i

(@ AKEHKSE

25.

RS EAKE D RFED
HERGHRZHEAN GO ESE

R -ARRZEESAKEOR

FUNERFR2EBHFBLT

below:
Share Share Merger Capital  Contributed  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
BRE
RE  BOEE  AHRE B HABRB 2iHER &t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 April 2017 R=Z-+FmA-A 4217 41,970 (1522) 7851 31,960 = 84476
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (6,787) (6,787)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AFFZEHREE
for the year - - - - - (6,787) (6,787)
At31 March 2018 RZE-\F=f=1-H 42017 41,970 (1522) 7851 31,960 (6,787) 77,689
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\5mA—-A 4,217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (6,787) 77,689
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (7,506) (7,506)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AFEZEHYEE
for the year - - - - - (7,506) (7,506)
At31 March 2019 RZE-nE=A=1-H 4,217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (14,293) 70,183
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B W 5 A M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25. BAKGHE (&)
(b)  Share capital (b) K&
2019 2018
ZE-hE “E-0\F
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
ROEE k2] BEE £ ]
HK$'000 HKS 000
FE7 FET
Authorised: EIE
At the beginning and RENRER
at the end of the year (BREB0.0002%E T
(ordinary shares of Z2ERER)
HK$0.0002 each) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
Ordinary shares of BIREE0.0002/5 T
HK$0.0002 each EER
At the beginning and REDNRER
at the end of the year 21,084,072,140 4,217 21,084,072,140 4217
The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to LTBREE ABRKBTRERZRE I
receive dividends as declared from time to ERERARBIRE FRBRERMNIE—F-
time and are entitled to one vote per share at FrEEERRARRFBEENFBEZE R
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares EHbf o

rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REEEER AR
(i) Share premium (i) Vigrpiali

The application of the share premium RO RERAEXARE

account is governed by the Companies —NWN—FRFE([2A

Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies ENDRARRZHARE -

Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(i)

Merger reserve

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

25. BARfH#E (&)

(0 fEEHEERRRZ (&)

(i)

(iii)

=

RIRAR R BB B P b
MR ATETT 2 S EEAE
(TEEEAR]) - RNRARR=
ZE=F-ARBRRER
ARARE 2 & RB 2R
RAE-AEBzAHRER
RESESERBZARR
— MR E AR Z R EE
BLR R B 2 R M HO AR ) Th 3
Tz zEEREZREZ
8

B

BRI 2 HE RS e
B SR AR PRI A A) S BT B %
ERARREZARELZ
A RERERA RS
RAERERARZEER
B A B S ARIE AR R B K
b=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

25.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would be
transferred from the reserve account to
retained profits.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

25.

BRAFK e (&)

(c)

EEEER AR (&)
(iv)  EERE

(v)

RIEEANPBAE A&
EETHBEMEQRA
1 L BR B 18 0 7 S D 7 10%
EIREAERE BEEHSE
HEEDFEMELR Z50%5
lE- BB MNARRBKE
2RI B AT B R = AN A

RIEEANPBAE  KNE
BERELRATERMES
7P BB B A ) B #S HE R %
HEEBWAERBIS%EL%
WEEXRGTENE TmME
BEXTRHE ZZHEREE
AELEZEEREERAY
REATHEFUEA %
HEERSASBEBHFEER
8 0] (R B i Tl

)}

BEHEL
RBEHR AR Z2EH
BAERHAR AR EE
RERERN R BEYERK
FELAZERSHE EFCE
HWEBAREBEBERRA
BRI HA R R RETE
BzaHE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(s).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of debt, which includes bank advances for
discounted bills disclosed in note 23, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

25. BARfH#E (&)

(c)

(d)

EEEER AR (&)
vi) [EXZMEHE

[E X FEmeERAmERRESs
INETE 2 TS MRPTEE 2
BE 52 2 o B R IR FE2(s)
Pz gt BoRBEIE -

BREE
AEREEEREANE M AEBE
A5 SRR B (R B T TR
AEENEEBTHELE A
BROEFERADR AEEH
TN R

AEENEARBREER (21
MYFE23FT I EE < RITREIRRIERR)
RARBHRBEANEGEZ (BB
BITRA R M)

ARAREFTERRMIERRE 1F
RBRZ MO EFERELRK
ARESEEEREHEZ AR -RIE
EFER AKERBERITHK
N B AR ZETHELERR
BEE ATFHEEBERRE-
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25. RAKRFE (&)

(d) Capital management (continued) (d)
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:

EXEE (&)

ARBREAEIMNME R AR ES D
SN SRFT e ANEY B AN AR TE FATIR ©

AEBEEREERGBL X (AERE
ERR A NBIEE) BERE AR - 1%
SEADFES ARG R R
EHRZEEABLEMT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\E&

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Bank advances for discounted bills 88778538 & 23K 412,557 851,210
Equity attributable to owners RAFHEE ANEGER

of the Company 559,336 682,443

Equity and total borrowings R BEE 971,893 1,533,653

Gearing ratio BEAREE 42.4% 55.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2012 for the purpose
of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 6 January 2003 was terminated on the
same date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the date of
adoption. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future development
and expansion of the Group. The Share Option Scheme
shall provide incentive to encourage participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results
of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any individual being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representatives of any
member of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group) who,
as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion,
has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

26.
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26.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance by)
the participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on
which the option is granted, which date must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the
option period after the option has been granted by the
Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from
the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares
in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding
lapsed options), must not represent more than 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit") or as at the date of approval of the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit as the case may be.
As at 31 March 2019, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,085,407,210 shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, there is no
outstanding unexpired and unexercised share options.

26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HE-ZT—NF=A=+—HAILLFE
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRITAZHBEBREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =]
INSTRUMENTS
The Group's major financial instruments include the AEEZFEMITABETIIEE:
followings:
Categories of financial instruments SRMTIAEZER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Trade and bills receivables KB S FEREE 538,771 2,373,981
Amount due from a non-controlling JFE WL FE 1R A e 2 O TE
interest and other receivables H b e W IE 2,739 429
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRe vfﬁ% 92,373 212,545
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKARFTEZ
(previously classified as loans and CREE (ZAHE DA
receivables) RER R EWRIE) 633,883 2,586,955
Forward foreign exchange contracts EHIHME S %Y 595 =
Financial assets at fair value through BRAABITFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 595 =
Financial liabilities SRAE
Trade and bills payables FER B 55 IE R EIR 24,651 1,245,453
Accruals and other payables FEGHE A I CH b FE 4 518 27,251 64,247
Bank advances for discounted bills RITER IR IR B 412,557 851,210
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKAS| R 2RBE 464,459 2,160,910
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHINE S 1,793 22,779
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRAAEFTABRLZ
profit or loss TRBE 1,793 22,779
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in

the respective notes. The main risks arising from the

Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity

risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies

on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The

management manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and bills receivables. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks with a minimum credit
rating of BBB assigned by Bloomberg, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer rather than the industry or
country in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 99% (2018:
98%) and 100% (2018: 100%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest trade debtor and the three largest trade
debtors respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZ_%

27.

=NE=H=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade and bills receivables are usually due
within 360 days from the date of billing,
shipment date or bills issue date. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade and bills receivables as at 31 March 2019:

27.

SBIAZHBAREIRAS

i

3

(@ FERAR(E)
TEREHBERAEER_Z-NF
ZHA=t—BZEERRNANER
BOFERERZAREEER:

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEER IREAE EERE
% HKS$’000 HKs’000
% FET FHET
Current (not past due) BER (R Hd) 0.09 538,730 -
1-30 days past due #HI1ZE30H - - -
31-60 days past due #HI31E60H - - -
61-90 days past due #HI61Z290H - - -
More than 90 days past due  #IHA#BiB90H 0.169 114 73
538,844 73

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HZ—-ZT—hF=A=+—HLFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRMIACHBEREERDA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) FEERE (&)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2(i)(i) — policy
applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March
2018, trade receivables of HK$73,000 were
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis
of trade receivables that were not considered to
be impaired was as follows:

BB B R FE395 2 LB EH

R=_TE—N\EFEMNA—HA ERE
BEZREEERR  HE2RRRE
BB (R M6 6) -R =T —/\FKm
A—BRERAZEEK) cR=ZF—N
F=ZA=1+—H " 73,0008 T Z B
ESRBEEETHERBE HRA
W TREZEKE S HIBZERERSD
iR UlNE

2018
—E—)\F
HKS'000
FHEITL

R 2K 38 50 7 4 8k (B
B R3ME A

Neither past due nor impaired
over 3 months past due

At 31 March 2018, no bills receivables were
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis
of bills receivables that were not considered to
be impaired was as follows:

96,919
43

96,962

RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—8B #HE
JE W 3= 45 4% 8 E IR R - R AR
I RE 2 IR 1R 2 BR e 9 T 40
T

2018
—ZE—)N\F
HKS'000
FHET

B 7R 38 5 7 4 Rk (B

Neither past due nor impaired

2,277,019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A T 0 R M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRTITACUBRAREERAR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) FERK (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor B oK 280 HA 78 4 (B 2 FE R I B A
impaired related to bills receivables customers MHEARE 2 BRREBRERA
for whom there was no recent history of e
default.
Receivables that were past due but not B 280 HA B R (8 2 FE WU IE R BE R
impaired related to a few independent HASEREERTARELHEZIH
customers that had a good track record BYRF -BEBTLR BRER
with the Group. Based on past experience, RBATZE T IRE AR E R
management believed that no impairment # REREEERIEENEE.
allowance was necessary in respect of these A =R ES G =R

balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in HEWE S HIEREEAIRZER
respect of trade and bills receivables during the BERRAFEZZSHUT

year is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FHET TB7T

Balance at beginning of the year REA) 2 48R 73 73

Amounts written off during the year RZANF[EHi$5 2 & 58 - -
Impairment losses recognised RAFEBERZBEERE

during the year - -

Balance at end of the year RERZ Gk 73 73
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The cash management policy of the Group
includes short-term investment of cash
surpluses and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term. The Group relies on its liquid funds
and bank advances as significant sources of
liquidity.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for the bank advances for
discounted bills which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at
the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows
the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the Group can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the bank advances
for discounted bills with immediate effect.

27.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

27. gﬁﬂlﬂz,ﬂﬁﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ:

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELERARK (&)
2019
—B-NF
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year cash flow amount
ANRER
ReRE
RER R—FR bk BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities: JF#T£&MAME:
Trade and bills payables ERESHBRER - 24,651 24,651 24,651
Accruals and other payables 5t & A R H R 7008 - 27,251 27,251 27,251
Bank advances for discounted bills ~ RTERIR = E# TR 412,557 - 412,557 412,557
412,557 51,902 464,459 464,459
2018
—TN\E
Total
contractual
Within  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year cash flow amount
BHRER
Hene
BEX R—=FR wE KEE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FHET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FfT£EMESE:
Trade and bills payables EHEHRERE - 1,245,453 1,245,453 1,245,453
Accruals and other payables FE5T B R X Bt JE AT 300R - 64,247 64,247 64,247
Bank advances for discounted bills #8717 843R ZE 5 851,210 - 851,210 851,210
851,210 1,309,700 2,160,910 2,160,910
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27.

=NE=H=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables summarises the maturity
analysis of bank advances for discounted bills
with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the bills contracts. Taking into account of the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Group do not consider it probable that the
banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the
Group believe that such bank advances will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bills contracts.

Maturity Analysis — Bank advances for
discounted bills subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled
repayments

27.
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On demand

BB
HK$’000
FET

TEAH-HHEREERQR
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T%WW%EEEiE%M%Zﬁ
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Total
Within  undiscounted

1 year cash flows

AREER

Reng

S —FR s
HKs'000 HK$'000
FET BT

31 March 2019 R-ZE—hF
=A=+-—H

31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\F
=A=+—H

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

- 412,557 412,557

= 870,831 870,831
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SRIAZHBAREERAS

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBESER (&)
2019 2018
“E-NF —Z-)\F
Within Within
1 year or 1 year or
on demand Total  ondemand Total
R—FR R—FR
FERER #st FIREK st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET TET TET
Derivative settled gross: BEEITETRAGE
Forward foreign EHIMES A
exchange contracts
- outflow — i (89,937) (89,837) (279,445) (279,445)
- inflow —mA 88,739 88,739 256,666 256,666

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see note 20(a) for details) and
fair value interest rate risk mainly in relation to
fixed-rate amount due from a non-controlling
interest (see note 19(a) for details) and bank
advances for discounted bills (see note 23 for
details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and variable rate financial instruments.

(0 FEER
MERBRE-BREBTEZARE
EARKRERERTHMNEXEFN
HIRRE) 2 B - ANEEFLE B IRTT
iEeR (FHE RITEE20() ) AR 2
EREmEE - N BRI
@2 ELHE (FIFREME190a)) &
RITRAIR BB (15 R E23)
AR SEN R E R

REBEEEN KRR 2T RER
BEARZERRFEEMIT A
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27.

=NE=H=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) in interest rates for variable-
rate financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's loss after tax and the
increased/decreased Group's retained profits
by approximately HK$221,000 (2018: increased/
decreased the Group's profit after the retained
profits by approximately HK$783,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank balances.
Other components of the Group's consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) increase/decrease in interest rates is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

27.

T—HALEE

TRl
1E (4

(c)

TEAH-HHEREERQR
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V=9
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EE)MAE At S S EFTE A
REBZBREBEERRD IR
NEE 2R E I 0,6 A 4
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2 BR AR BE S5 ) 18 55 F) 38 o0, R A 49
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables,
cash and cash equivalents and bank
advances for discounted bills that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that
is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily US$
and RMB. The Group manages this risk
as follows:

Recognised assets and liabilities
Changes in the fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts that
minimise the foreign currency risk of
certain monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss (see
note 5). The net fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts entered
into by the Group at 31 March 2019 was
HK$1,198,000 (2018: HK$22,779,000),
recognised as derivative financial
instruments under financial instruments
measured at FVPL (notes 19 and 22).

27.

TMTACHHEREERQR

B (&)

(d)

EX AR
(i) P&z BHEm R
AEBT 2R EFREMA

XENER BHEESE
EASNE (BIX 58 BES
2 B SN B 5
B2 R RIE - B 308
ReRIRESFEYAKRIRIT
AR EESAH - EHEIER
S EENETRARE S
FT-AEBEEERERRZ
FAWTE

EEREENRARE
BETEKEERABEZIN
EEREESEMEAZER
HINES N2 AR EEBR
B ER(RHES) &
EEATRI N 2 R HIMNE S LY
R-_E—NFE=ZA=+—8H
Z A B FE 51,198,00075
70 (ZZF— \F © 22,779,000
BIL) BEERBBBAN
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27.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(1)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Recognised assets and liabilities
(continued)

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure
it considered necessary.

The following details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

27.
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27.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #Z_=%

=IEEE A== B4 E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRITACZHBEAREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ERE (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) HrE R B E R (&)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)
SHERK (UBTIIR)
2019 2018
—E-hE —Z-\F
uss RMB Uss RMB
EY AR#¥ ES ARE
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and bills receivables BB HFTEREE - - - 6,565
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 7,419 652 22,634 154
Trade and bills payables ENBHREBERRE (655) - (1,202,770) -
Accruals and other payables it B R R E MM R - m = (494)
Bank advances for discounted bills ~ $R7TBEIR Z 1 B (86,379) - (262,029) =
Gross exposure arising from ERRAERABMELE
recognised assets and liabilities ZEBEE (79,615) 651  (1,442,165) 6,225
Notional amount of forward BINE R B R E
foreign exchange contracts PR 2 B HANES X0
used to mininise the foreign ZEEEH
currency risk 88,739 - 256,666 -
Net exposure arising from recognised EHEREERE BHRES
assets and liabilities RS 9,124 651  (1,185,499) 6,225
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRTIECHEREREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ER (&)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) B E ST

The following tables indicate the
instantaneous change in the Group's
(loss)/profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HKS and the US$
would not be materially affected by
any changes in movement in value of

TREATMAEEN RS H
REZBREKRZ EERE
BEEMEZE BREMBEH
fib B E A RN RNEE R
Br (BR) &8 (RRE
i A ) 2 BB 2 &) o BE it i
S EPRIBTEETY
HeEERTgREETTEEM
5%[?% A2 AR &)

RRERFE-BEREH
(T&ws%% B E Frat b sh
M EEER R
REABERZAE (BE)

the US$ against other currencies. The ZHRRE L o
increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange
rates of 5% represents the sensitivity
rate of management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.
2019 2018
—E-RE “TN\E
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Decrease)/  Increase/ (decrease)  Increase/ Increase/
in foreign increase (decrease) inforeign  (decrease)  (decrease)
exchange inloss inretained  exchange in profit  in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
BB& RE CRIAES RE
Ex BE bl [ = il i Al

tr/ GRS/ &h/
(TH) #m (BD)
HK$'000  HK$'000

tH/ i/ #m,/
(TE) () C:2
HKS000  HKS'000

FET FET FHET FAT

RMB ARE 5% (27) 27 5% 260 260
(5%) 27 (27) (5%) (260) (260)

Us$ T 5% (349) 349 5% (49,276) (49,276)
(5%) 349 (349) (5%) 49,276 49,276
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_ZT—hWF=A=+—BIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2018.

In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year, at the
US$ denominated liabilities are with
different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.

27.
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27.

=NE=H=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level
1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs,
that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are
not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs

27.
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27.

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HEZE—ZT—hF=A=+—HBLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i)

at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

27. gﬁﬂlﬂz,ﬂﬁﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ:

(%)

(e) AREE(E)

BAREFAEZLHEER

RE (&
RAERER(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2019 categorised into

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into

R-B-AE=R=1-AH R=E-NE=A=t-H
ZAREFENEAR LRNEGENER
Fair value Fair value
at 31 March at 31 March
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
# R®
ZZ-RE —E-0\%
=B =A
=t+-8 =t+-8
ZARE 18 EPE B30 ZRRE £18 28 £38
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
FExT  FAT  TAn  TEr  FEr  FErT  FET FET
Recurring fairvalue BB HELRAEHE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Financial assets R
mandatorily measured A7 (Eit A Bz
at FVPL LEREE
- derivative financial ~ —fTAESBTE:
instruments:
- Forward foreign —REIHNE
exchange L
contracts 595 - 595 - - - - -
Liabilities: af:
Financial liabilities R
mandatorily measured A7 (Eit A Bz
at FVPL ZEREE
- derivative financial ~ —fTAESBTE:
instruments:
- Forward foreign —RHINES
exchange i)
contracts 1,793 - 1,793 - 22,719 - 22,779 -
During the years ended 31 March 2019 L EZ - NFRZZE—N
and 2018, there were no transfers F=A=+—HLEFE F1
between Level 1 and Level 2, or B 28R 2 A R - TR
transfers into or out of Level 3. The A\ S I 34 o A
Group's policy is to recognise transfers ZBERAANERRAzE
between levels of fair value hierarchy BB B 2 s HAR AR
as at the end of the reporting period in R o

which they occur.
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27.

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement (continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts in Level 2 is
determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate.

Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material
related party transactions:

Key management personnel compensation

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and
total remuneration for them (including amounts paid to
them as employee of the Group prior to appointment
as directors) in the year as follows:

27.

28.

TMTACHHEREERQR
B (&)

(e) AREFE(H)
(i) BARETEZTHEER
EE (&)
NAERR (&)

FARAEZRIESDHZA
RETABBRESHEMER
HBREEZHAEE -

(i) FHERAEFEZ EHEE
REEZDNAE
RZZE-NFRZZF—NF
—A=1+—8 A£EEK
NESBEIEX ARG EZ 2/
TAZEEBERFESZAN

EYWMEAER
BEXRAEALIRS

AEFERALTHNERBFEALR S

TEEEASHH
FBEXTEEEABHRARB2ES KE
REREE DR Z S 2 R s H B kK
ERNFAZHER (BREZEIRESL
RIERAKBEREE XN FRENESHE) &
(I

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HKs’000 HKs'000
FET FET

Salaries and other short-term FeRkHMEHESRET
employee benefits 10,277 27,311
Post-employment benefits BEE% 1248 A 24 185
10,301 27,496

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)).

MemmEest A T8 IRA] (RETE6(b))

A e

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T



29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29.

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the
end of the reporting period but not recognised as
liabilities is as follows:

BAEE

RBEMRITZERHRERLBEZERKR
BARST

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—N\F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FHET TB7T

Property, plant and equipment Y- B k& B 1,309 6,438
OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 30. REHE&RE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREBAA

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

RZZBE-—NEFE=A=+—H8 xEBZTA
BIHREHE 2 RARKEHEFRIRATE N
T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HKs’000 HKS'000

FET FAET

Within one year —F KN 16,273 16,727
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 8,513 25,619
24,786 42,346

The Group is the lessee in respect of properties under
operating leases. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of 2 to 5 years (2018: 3 to 5 years), some of the
leases have an option to renew the leases when all
terms are subject to renegotiation. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERREMER TR ZEEA - HLH
ZEREBTOFHRMERF(ZF—N
FZERF) FoEEREEANKA
BEEBEHHERIPIA R - WBBLM B A
HE -
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31. SUBSIDIARIES 31. MEAA
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE-—NEF=ZA=+—BZ2FEMRBRQ
March 2019: AR
Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business shares held  paid up capital equity interest activities
RIHEMAL BRTRARRA
WEARER BEhE FRER 2B 4G IR A R 2 TEXH
2019 2018
ZB-hE TN\
Indirectly held
BEER
China Mining Industrial Import &  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2018: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Export Company Limited B e RERA (ZS-NEF: metal minerals and
HERFELNESERAR 1RRAR 1) related industrial
materials
RERHEECREY
LEBIERH
Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2018: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Limited &5 & RERG (Z2-NF: metal minerals and
2REBERERAR 1RRR) related industrial
materials
RERHECEEY
RIBBIXREHR
New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2018: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited ~ &% g RRG (ZE-N\F: management
HRBEERBBAF 1RAR 1) services
REEERS
EERTHERRAA PRC Registered ~ RMB142,610,000 (2018: 100% 100%  Production and sale
(literally translated as "Ningxia H Eia i RMB142,610,000) of utilities
Tianyuan Power Generation AR 142,610,007 EERHELRER
Co,, Ltd.") (note) (#17E) (Z2-N\%:
AR 1426100007
EREERRARGA PRC Registered ~ RMB77,365,215 (2018: 100% 100%  Production and
NG| # i RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
(literally translated as ANE#77,3652157C products
“Ningxia Huaxia Integrated (ZZ-N\F: EEREETER
Waste Recycling Company AE#77,3652157T) Em

Limited”) (note) ( #Z)

Note:
owned enterprise.

Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-

Biat -

RIBHBUEPIZM A EBE RS-
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Fof £ T 2 A R i
BE—T-NF=A=+—HLEE

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32. ARIEEZHMBAARREK
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
=F SR ST S\
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
Jiopz3 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIZKE - =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TBRFIE - e REMEYK
other receivables RIE 279,924 278,979
Tax recoverable AJ YR [E1 77 18 - 21
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 3,126 1,616
283,050 280,616
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals, deposits and other EETER EE Rk
payables H b fE S R 212,867 202,927
Net assets EEFE 70,183 77,689
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANQ A A A B
the Company
Share capital [N 25(b) 4,217 4217
Reserves ] 65,966 73,472
Total equity fESHAE 70,183 77,689
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 33. ST RAE
JUDGEMENTS
(a) Critical accounting judgements (a) FE ST E
Impairment of financial assets TREERE

The loss allowance for financial assets are

based on assumptions about risk of default and

expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement

in making these assumptions and selecting the

inputs to the impairment calculation, based

on the Group’s past history, existing market

conditions as well as forward looking estimates

at the end of each reporting period. Details

of the key assumptions and inputs used are

disclosed in the tables in note 27.

CREEERBESERTENR
M EHIER R 2 BRMAE - A&
BEFLZERRLEZRETE
B E A ER - IRIRA R BIAERLR
BEMSEREARREREHRDN
AT 1 1 51 17 2 B - BR B2 R AR

FABABEFBERENMF27Z2E

o
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33.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions

concerning the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that may have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated impairment of non-financial
assets

Determining whether there is an
impairment requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of the non-
financial assets or the respective CGU in
which the non-financial assets belong,
which is the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows or the revision
of estimated future cash flows are less
than original estimated future cash flow,
a material impairment loss may arise.

33.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(1)

(i)

Provision of ECL for trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to
calculate ECL for the trade and bills
receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due as groupings
of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is
based on the Group's historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade and bills
receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade
and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 18.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories
is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and
the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on
the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #HZE—_Z—hWF=A=+—HIFE

33.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values
of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation
charge for the year. The useful lives
and the residual values are based on
the Group's historical experience with
similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to income taxes, including
capital gain tax, if any, in Hong Kong
and PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many
transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fof £ T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 HBE —_ZT— hF=A=+—HLLFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
K (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to Definition of Material?

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement’
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #ZEZ=Z

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 2(h), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
that is, at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (that is, where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for A T 2 A R i

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &HZ_-_ZT—NF=F=

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16,
the Group plans to use the practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will
therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying
the new accounting model to short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS
16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not restate
the comparative information. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$24,786,000 as disclosed in note
30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above
could have a material impact on the Group's financial
statement from 2020 onwards.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 sets out how to determine the
accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The interpretation requires an
entity to determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group; and assess whether it
is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an
entity in its income tax filings.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
condition, the party exercising the option may pay or
receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment
irrespective of the reason that is, prepayment features
with negative compensation do not automatically fail
SPPI.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary
users. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &HZ_-_ZT—NF=F=

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the
following four standards.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where the entity originally recognised the
transactions that generated the distributable profits.
This is the case irrespective of whether different tax
rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits.

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generally
when calculating the capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains
control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity
applies the requirements for a business combination
achieved in stages, including remeasuring its previously
held interest in the joint operation at fair value. The
previously held interest to be remeasured includes any
unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to
the joint operation.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that
participates in, but does not have joint control of, a
joint operation that is a business obtains joint control
of such a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure
its previously held interest in the joint operation.
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35. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

(a)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and
HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is
not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

With a review of financial statements
presentation, certain items in the financial
statements were reclassified which would
result in a more appropriate presentation of
events or transactions. Particularly, the Group
consider the fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments and net foreign exchange
differences should be presented under “other
net (loss)/income” whereas the income and
expense of these items were presented under
“other income” and “administrative expenses”,
respectively, in prior year. Accordingly,
comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NF ZT-)\F ZZ—+tFf ZT—RF ZT-H%F
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS 4
Revenue Y2k 1,296,035 2,392,876 1,872,541 2,269,381 633,957
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E1B) /R F (60,922) 286,877 93,000 215,266 20,043
Income tax Ffe (9,750) (52,901) (27,752) (46,128) (4,441)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE2(B8B)/af (70,672) 233,976 65,248 169,138 15,602
Non-controlling interests RS 322 (338) 1,100 8,578 1,596
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ARRIEEAER
the Company for the year FE(BB),/ &7 (70,350) 233,638 66,348 177,716 17,198
At 31 March
R=A=1+-8H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-fE —“T-N\F ZT—+F E-F —T-1F
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FAT FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHREE
Total assets BELE 1,038,764 3,449,563 1,864,279 3,577,369 500,890
Total liabilities BEEE (487,655)  (2,775384)  (1,493,079)  (3,237,553) (334,383)
Non-controlling interests R R 8,227 8,264 8,053 7,232 (2,353)
559,336 682,443 379,253 347,048 164,154
Equity attributable to owners of ADAHE AEGEER
the Company 559,336 682,443 379,253 347,048 164,154

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEBEZRERAF
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